
Integrated Report 2016 Year Ended March 31, 2016

Move on toward 
our destination.



A new frontier, a new lifestyle



01Sekisui Chemical Integrated Report 2016

Contents

Contents

66 Financial Highlights (6 years)

67 Consolidated Financial Statements

 67  Consolidated Balance Sheet

 69  Consolidated Statement of Income

 70  Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

 71  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

 72  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

 74  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

106 Independent Auditor’s Report

Figures in the Integrated Report     For charts and graphs in this integrated report denominated in billions of yen, numbers below a billion are rounded up or down to the nearest hundred million. For those denominated in millions of yen, numbers below 
a million are rounded off to the nearest hundred thousand.

Introduction01

FINANCIAL SECTION (SEPARATE VOLUME)65



02Sekisui Chemical Integrated Report 2016

Publication of the Integrated Report 2016
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016

The Sekisui Chemical Group aims for sustained growth by continuing 
to create new value worldwide using the strengths it derives from 
prominence in technology and quality. We also aim to become a more 
compelling company that is trusted even more by society as a result 
of our corporate activities.
 Beginning with the 2016 edition of this report, the Group will pub-
lish an integrated report that explains its economic value, the outcomes 
of activities to create social value, Group strategies, its medium-term 
vision, as well as a discuss its financial strategy, shareholder return 
policy and other measures that form the basis of corporate activities. 
We hope this integrated report is a useful tool for deepening your 
understanding of the Group.
 This report can be downloaded from our website in PDF for-
mat. Moreover, the main content of this report can be viewed on 
the Investor Relations section of our website, from the SEKISUI 
Overview menu.

Integrated Report (PDF version)
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/ir/library/annual/index.html

SEKISUI Overview
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/ir/sekisui_overview/index.html

This report covers fiscal 2015, the period from April 2015 to March 2016. Some 
parts of this report contain qualitative information as of June 2016.
 The forecasts, plans, outlooks, and other forward-looking statements in this 
report are based on management’s judgment of information available at the time 
this report was produced. Changes in key factors may cause actual performance 
results to differ materially from these forward-looking statements.

Introduction to Other Related Materials

Other related materials have been made available on our website to address the diverse interests of our 
readers in order to further their understanding of the Group. 

Investor Relations Information http://www.sekisuichemical.com/ir/

CSR Management http://www.sekisuichemical.com/csr/index.html

For more information about 
CSR, please visit the CSR 
section of our website.

Fact Book, 
Financial Analysis Tools
Ten years of historical financial 
data and indicators can be viewed 
in graphs and tables here.

CSR Report
This publication is a digest 
version of priority CSR issues. 

Publication of the Integrated Report 2016

For Analysts and 
Institutional Investors
The latest results presentation ma-
terials are available here. An audio 
recording of the presentation can 
be listened to online as well.
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Our Principles

• Service
 We create social* values through our corporate activities.

* Social and society: The entire society including “five stakeholders” (“customers,” “shareholders,” “employees,” “business 
partners,” “local community and the environment”) which have been prescribed in the “corporate philosophy” to date.

Please see the following website for further details about Sekisui Chemical 
Company’s Corporate Philosophy, Group Vision, and other elements of our 
Group Principles.

http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/principles/index.html

• Speed
  We bring reform to the market at “a speed like the bursting of 

pent-up waters into a chasm thousand fathoms deep.”

• Superiority
  We gain the society’s* confidence in us with our superior tech-

nologies and quality.

The Sekisui Chemical Group’s principles embody our Corporate Philosophy, which 
expresses the concepts and policies at the root of our corporate activities, Group Vision, 
which expresses the ideal form of the Group aimed for over the medium to long term 
based on the Corporate Philosophy, and specific Management Strategies, such as Midterm 
Management Plans, to realize the Group Vision.

 We are able to manage operations in a consistent manner by taking a comprehensive 
view and adopting a systematic approach that extends from our Corporate Philosophy that 
expresses our long-term priorities through to the Management Strategies created to address 
changes in market conditions and modern society.

Our Principles
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The Sekisui Chemical Group provides products and services that help solve issues that 
arise in home living and social issues in the chemicals field, by utilizing resources from 
society such as people (human capital), goods (manufacturing capital), money (financial 
capital), knowledge (intellectual capital), the environment (natural capital), and the trust of 
customers (social capital).

 The Group aims to create value within the context of the human capital, intellectual 
capital and natural capital that it used in the process of providing products and services. At 
the same time, the Group realizes growth in financial capital from the value (i.e. profit) of 
its products and services.

Value Creation Model

Value Creation Model

Social 
needs 

Social 
needs

Output 
from 

resources

Resources

Value created by the Sekisui Chemical Group

Output

Provision of 
products and 
services that 
solve social 

issues

Creation of value 
for people, goods, 

money, 
knowledge and 

nature

Outcome

The Sekisui Chemical Group

Principles

Strategies

Business foundation (capital used for business activities) Return of 
resourcesInput

Medium-term 
Management Plan CSR Medium-term Plan

Business activities performed by three 
divisional companies

HPP Housing UIEP

Social issues in 
home living

Social issues in the 
chemicals field

People, goods, 
money, knowledge, 

and nature that 
exists in society

Human 
Capital

Natural Capital

Intellectual 
Capital

Social 
Capital

HPP: High Performance Plastics Company
Housing: Housing Company
UIEP: Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products Company
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Since introducing the divisional company system in 2001, the Sekisui Chemical Group has 
pursued growth strategies and structural reforms based on three strongly independent 
divisional companies: the High Performance Plastics Company, the Housing Company, and 
the Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products Company. Each divisional company 
offers a large number of high-value-added products based on our superior technologies. 

Many products have top-class shares of global and domestic markets, such as interlayer 
films for automobiles, cholesterol diagnostic reagents and homes with solar-power 
generation systems. The Group has grown in scale to exceed net sales of ¥1 trillion and 
operating income of ¥80 billion, while steadily developing global business to account for 
more than 25% of total sales.

Group Position

High Performance Plastics 
(HPP) Company

Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products (UIEP) Company

Housing Company

Main Products

•  Micropearl (Conductive fine 
particles)

• S-LEC (Interlayer film)

• Softlon (Foaming material)

•  Cholestest (Cholesterol  
diagnostic reagent)

Net Sales: 

378.6 bil. yen 

(FY2015)

34.5% 59.4%

Net Sales, Operating Income (Composition Ratio)

Operating Income:

53.4 bil. yen 

(FY2015)

Net Sales: 

473.4 bil. yen 

(FY2015)

43.2% 40.5%

Operating Income: 

36.4 bil. yen 

(FY2015)

Main Products

•  Sekisui Heim (Steel-frame  
detached houses)

•  Two-U Home (Wood-frame  
detached houses)

•  Letoit, Harvestment series  
(Housing complexes)

Net Sales, Operating Income (Composition Ratio)

Net Sales: 

226.3 bil. yen 

(FY2015)

20.6% 4.0%

Operating Income: 

3.6 bil. yen 

(FY2015)

Main Products

•  ESLON pipes (Water supply and  
drainage pipes)

•  SPR Method, Omega-Liner Method 
(Pipeline rehabilitation)

• ESLON valves (Industrial equipment)

•  KYDEX, ALLEN (Interior and exterior 
materials for aircraft and vehicle)

Net Sales, Operating Income (Composition Ratio)

Group Position
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Financial Highlights

Net Sales Operating Income

*Includes impact from fiscal year changeover at overseas subsidiaries 
  implemented in fiscal year 2012.

*Includes impact from fiscal year changeover at overseas subsidiaries 
  implemented in fiscal year 2012.

Free Cash Flow = Operating Activities CF + Investing Activities CF - Dividend Paid

Net Income Attributable to Owners of Parent

Free Cash Flow EBITDA

EBITDA = Operating Income + Depreciation and Amortization

Dividends per Share

(Billions of yen)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12* FY14
0

400

800

1,200

926.2926.2 958.7958.7 934.2934.2
858.5858.5 915.5915.5 965.1965.1

1,032.41,032.4
1,110.91,110.9 1,112.71,112.7

FY15

1,096.31,096.3

(Billions of yen)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
-30

0

30

60

-23.8-23.8

37.237.2

-7.8-7.8

15.115.1 12.612.6

-12.3-12.3

30.730.7
24.924.9

58.858.8

FY15

33.433.4

(Billions of yen)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12* FY14
0

80

40

120

45.245.2 43.043.0
33.633.6 36.036.0

49.349.3 54.654.6 59.659.6

82.582.5 85.885.8
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(Billions of yen)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0
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25.525.5 24.324.3
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23.623.6
28.128.1 30.230.2
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(Billions of yen)
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(Yen)
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Financial Highlights
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Net Assets Interest-bearing Debt

Shareholders’ Equity to Total Assets = Shareholders’ Equity including Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive Income/Total Assets

Shareholders’ Equity to Total Assets

Operating Income Ratio Return on Equity (ROE)

Return on Equity = Net Income Attributable to Owners of Parent/Average 
Shareholders’ Equity

Dividends Payout Ratio

(Billions of yen)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0
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413.1413.1
368.9368.9

330.7330.7 351.7351.7 350.0350.0 363.3363.3
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535.3535.3
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(Billions of yen)
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92.192.1

129.4129.4 133.1133.1 124.5124.5 127.2127.2
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63.163.1
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52.352.3

(%)
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53.353.3
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(%)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
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4.54.5

3.63.6
4.24.2

5.45.4 5.75.7 5.85.8

7.47.4 7.77.7
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(%)
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0
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12
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26.126.1

32.532.5
28.928.9

FY06

Financial Highlights
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Non-Financial Highlights

Number of Employees

(Number of persons)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0

20,000

10,000

30,000

18,90518,905 18,90718,907 19,74219,742 19,76119,761 19,77019,770 20,85520,855 22,20222,202 23,01723,017 23,88623,886
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23,90123,901

Global Talent Employees

(Number of persons)
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294294 300300
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions during Manufacturing (Japan)

(Kilotons-CO2)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0

200

300
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400 396396 389389
365365

330330 341341 342342
312312

340340 321321
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Energy Usage during Manufacturing (Japan)

(TJ) 

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0

4,000

2,000

8,000

6,000
6,3636,363 6,5196,519

6,0876,087
5,6575,657 5,9565,956 5,6595,659 5,4565,456

5,9375,937 5,5965,596

FY15

5,3475,347

Environment-Contributing Products

(Billions of yen)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0

400

200

600

135,8135,8 146.6146.6
178.6178.6

302.6302.6
359.2359.2

392.5392.5
466.8466.8

162.3162.3

FY15

485.8485.8495.1495.1

Environment-contributing products: Products that have demonstrated a high level 
of environmental contribution and that have been certified as having an effect
when used by customers under the Company’s internal certification system

Loss Costs

(Millions of yen)

FY13FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
0

400

200

800

600

201201

775.4775.4

444.5444.5
510.9510.9

371371
274274

383.6383.6

FY15

393.7393.7

250250
326326

Loss costs: Domestic production site, R&D facility, Headquarters department, 
and indirect company department expenses including man-hours required to 
respond to occupational accidents, equipment-related accidents, and 
commuting accidents as well as long-term illness absences

Global talent employees: Japanese employees with experience working 
overseas (including overseas trainees)
The Company introduced a global talent employees program in fiscal 2009.

FY06

Overseas Sales RatioOverseas Sales Ratio

Non-Financial Highlights
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As one of the “3S principles” embodied in its Corporate Philosophy, the Sekisui Chemical 
Group has endeavored since its founding in 1947 to create value for society through busi-
ness activities by providing various products and services that help solve problems that 
arise in people’s daily lives and throughout society.
 By putting its Corporate Philosophy into practice, the group has been able to expand 
economic value while being a valuable contributor to society. Our Group Vision, which 
embodies our aims as a group over the medium and long terms, supports the realization of 
our Group mission. Detailed management strategies (i.e., the Medium-term Management 
Plan) bring us closer to making our Group Vision a reality.
 Under the current Medium-term Management Plan, SHINKA!-Advance 2016 (fiscal 
2014-2016), we aim to continue providing both economic and social value through busi-
ness activities that pursue corporate value and CSR activities that create social value.
In fiscal 2015, the group posted record-high profits as a result of business activities based 
on this concept. We have allocated the cash generated from our business activities in 
future growth investments as well as in shareholder returns. At the same time, the group 
made progress on CSR management, advancing its business foundation with corporate 
activities that enhance value over the medium and long terms. We also implemented 
measures to reinforce corporate governance, the basis of our future business activities.

Message from the President & CEO

Message from the President & CEO

Providing value to society 
through business activities 
based on prominence 
in technology and quality
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Record-High Operating Income for a Third Year
Fiscal 2015 started out with tailwinds provided by a moderate recovery undertone in 
advanced economies. However, the business environment deteriorated amid a slowdown 
in the Chinese economy and weakness in the economies of resource-rich nations and 
emerging countries. At the outset of 2016 in particular, the operating environment wors-
ened even further from the sharp appreciation of the yen and rekindled concerns about 
financial instability in Europe and economic growth in the U.S.
 In fiscal 2015, sales and profits decreased in the Housing Company, owing to an insuf-
ficient order backlog at the start of the fiscal year because domestic orders for smart houses 
in 2014 were dulled by the rise of excessive concerns about the future of the feed-in tariff 
(FIT) system. This decline, however, was offset by profit growth that resulted from steady 
expansion in global strategic fields, such as the Automobiles and Transportation field, which 
has positioned “eco-friendly materials for a comfortable ride” as a growth domain, in the 
High Performance Plastics Company, as well as the Life Sciences field, where the focus has 
been on growth in diagnostic reagent systems that help in the early detection of diseases. 
Steady improvement in earnings at the Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products 
Company, which has been reorganizing its portfolio, also contributed to profit growth. As a 
result, consolidated operating income grew ¥4.1 billion compared with the previous fiscal 
year to ¥89.8 billion, setting a new record high. Ordinary income was adversely affected by 
losses on foreign currency translation adjustments due to sharp exchange rate fluctuations. 
Nonetheless, net income reached a new record high of ¥56.7 billion.
 Sekisui Chemical proactively allocates profits for investments to sustain growth and 
for shareholder returns. Based on its dividend policy of emphasizing stable dividends that 

reflect performance, the Company distributed an annual dividend of ¥30 per share, an 
increase of ¥3 per share compared with the previous year, in fiscal 2015, a record-setting 
year for performance.

Firm Progress in Strengthening Business Foundations
While attaining record-high profits in fiscal 2015, the group also implemented measures to 
secure personnel and intellectual property that will support growth over the longer term, 
and took steps to preserve the environment. We advanced specific measures and initia-
tives related to human resources, intellectual property and the environment in line with 
our CSR Medium-Term Plan (fiscal 2014-2016). In fiscal 2015, the second year of this plan, 
we saw measureable progress on the human resources front in terms of fostering global 
personnel and promoting diversity.
 In the environment field, the group focused efforts on reducing environmental impact 
by expanding products that contribute to the environment, while also working to reduce 
our burden on the environment and preserve the natural environment. In fiscal 2015, the 
Company completed the development of a high-capacity film-type lithium ion battery that 
achieves both safety and long operating life, as a product that should contribute to the 
environment and help reduce greenhouse gases. We aim to start shipping this product in 
fiscal 2016.
 Moreover, we encouraged our business partners throughout the supply chain to pay 
more attention to issues related to human rights, labor and the environment. In fiscal 
2015, through CSR procurement, we made sure that our business partners are prop-
erly addressing the environment, human rights, compliance and occupational safety and 

Message from the President & CEO
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hygiene. While winding down this effort in Japan, we launched similar initiatives overseas, 
beginning with North America and Central America.

Aiming for Record-High Profits in Fiscal 2016
Fiscal 2016 is the last year of the current Medium-term Management Plan. The Company 
has already achieved its medium-term targets for an operating income ratio of 8% and 
ROE of 10%. As of the end of 2015, we had thought that one more target was within 
reach, for consolidated operating income of ¥100 billion in the final year. At the outset of 
fiscal 2016, however, we set our sights on growth of 5% in operating income to ¥94 bil-
lion, still a record high, based on conservative macro assumptions for foreign exchange 
rates and the domestic housing market share that reflected changes in the business envi-
ronment since the start of 2016, such as yen appreciation and uncertainties about whether 
the consumption tax would be raised as planned.
 In the High Performance Plastics Company, profits increased in line with our forecast, 
despite the adverse impact of foreign exchange rates, on account of global improvement 
in both volume and the sales mix for the strategic field of high-performance products, 
in continuation from the previous year. In the Housing Company, profits expanded on 
a tailwind of negative interest rates, which firmed up orders for smart houses and led 
to year-on-year growth in the second half of fiscal 2015. In the Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products Company, the bulk of profit growth was attributable to overseas 
operations seeing benefits from restructuring implemented in the previous fiscal year.
In addition to its profit targets, for key management benchmarks the Company aims to 
achieve an operating income ratio of 8.6% (up 0.4 percentage point) and ROE of 11.0% 

(up 0.1 percentage point).
 In fiscal 2016, the Group aims to attain record-high profits again as benefits steadily 
emerge from measures implemented to date, including investments and restructuring, 
despite the chaotic business environment. The group is in position to sustain profit growth 
by focusing efforts on accelerating the solidification of a foundation for future growth 
through the three policies that we have strongly pursued since I became president, 
namely strengthen earning power (business selection and concentration, management 
efficiency), forge new frontiers (create new markets), and foster innovation (create new 
products and businesses).

Virtuous Cycle of Earnings and Evolution, 
the Basics of Sustained Value Creation
In fiscal 2015, the group attained record-high profits despite tough business conditions, 
and we aim to break this record again in fiscal 2016. We attribute this constant achieve-
ment of new record highs in profits to the smooth building out and reshuffling of our 
business portfolios so that volatility in one product does not have an outsized impact on 
overall performance.
 Our current business portfolio is the result of a major strategic transformation we 
decided to undertake after posting losses for two consecutive years in fiscal 2000 and 
2001, owing to earnings volatility in the housing business, which had generated the bulk 
of profits, following the consumption tax hike in fiscal 1997.
 In this strategic transformation, we aimed to create a virtuous cycle, where cash gen-
erated by strong-performing businesses in tune with market needs is invested to evolve 

Message from the President & CEO
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businesses by creating products that address emerging needs and reforming business 
models, setting the stage for these businesses to generate cash in the future. By divisional 
company, we were able to create this virtuous cycle from an early stage at the Housing 
Company and the High Performance Plastics Company, and this drove the steady growth 
in profits over the past decade. In the Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products 
Company, however, our overseas growth strategy, which aimed to leverage our leading 
domestic technologies, faltered and fell slightly behind other divisional companies, but a 
rapid pivot in strategy and sweeping restructuring in fiscal 2015 has put the Company on 
a path towards earnings growth.
 Our emphasis is on sustained and reliable growth in earnings, not a windfall of profits 
in a single fiscal year. We therefore aim to create a series of hit products, instead of a 
single runaway hit product, like a home run. To achieve this goal, the Company has taken a 
hard and calculated look at whether it can create competitive advantages using its unique 
“prominences,” and whether it can enter markets with genuine growth potential. This 
process of trial and error has led to our current business portfolio.
 However, we will not let our success today impede our progress in the future. As 
the outlook for the domestic market is certainly not optimistic after the end of the 2020 
Tokyo Olympics, we must keep moving and forge new paths of growth. The group must 
constantly refresh the virtuous cycle of reinvesting profits to evolve its businesses in order 
to maintain sustainable growth in profits. With this objective in mind, the entire group is 
concentrating efforts along the three key concepts of strengthening earning power (busi-
ness selection and concentration, management efficiency), forging new frontiers (create 
new markets), and fostering innovation (create new products and businesses).
 In a position to supervise the three divisional companies, I will periodically assess the 
reshuffling of business portfolios at each divisional company while making final decisions 
on M&A deals and business divestures within the context of building an optimal business 
portfolio for the entire group.

Strong Corporate Governance Indispensable to Continued Value Creation
These initiatives to provide value, our growth strategies and restructuring, as well as the 
rapid decision-making of top management would not be possible without a corporate gov-
ernance structure that strikes a balance between offensive and defensive postures.
 In June 2015, the Corporate Governance Code came into effect for companies listed 
on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. As this Code aligns with the direction of our own corporate 
governance, we have taken this event as an opportunity to reinforce corporate governance 
at the Company via the implementation of necessary measures to comply with the Code.
 The Group has formulated and published the Corporate Governance Principles for the 
purpose of guiding its capital policy, including for strategic shareholdings and the execution 
of voting rights, enhancing two-way communications based on constructive dialog with 
shareholders, as well as deciding on a corporate governance system with basic policies 

that ensure transparency and fairness in management while rapidly addressing changes in 
the business environment.
 As the debate about corporate governance continues, we have introduced a new 
system for determining the compensation of directors and other levels of management. 
Under this new system, instead of stock options, we have introduced a stock-swap incen-
tive system based on employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) trusts with stock grants. We 
believe this incentive system will further motivate management to increase the earnings 
of the group over the medium and long term, contribute more to corporate activities, and 
focus more on shareholders. 

Aiming to Enhance Corporate Value and Provide More Value to Society
In fiscal 2016, the group will continue to pursue its growth strategies while restructuring 
operations with the aim of posting record-high profits for a fourth consecutive year. From 
the perspective of enhancing corporate value over the longer term, the group will continue 
to focus efforts on fostering personnel (Prominence in Human Resources), improving cus-
tomer satisfaction (Prominence in CS & Quality), and returning natural capital (Prominence 
in the Environment).
 The entire group is in position to enhance corporate value and provide more value to society.
 We are thankful for the continued understanding and support of our stakeholders.

Message from the President & CEO

Teiji Koge
President and Representative Director
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Strategy

Strategy
The Sekisui Chemical Group aims to ensure sustained growth over the medium and long terms. 
Within this context, in this section we explain the nature of our businesses (i.e., our business 
portfolios), the way we conduct business in these areas (i.e., our business models), and ini-
tiatives to strengthen and shuffle businesses in these areas (i.e., our growth strategy). As an 
embodiment of specific measures, our Medium-term Management Plan outlines our earnings 
targets and cash flow strategies.

Social 
needs 

Social 
needs

Output 
from 

resources

Resources

Value created by the Sekisui Chemical Group

Output

Provision of 
products and 
services that 
solve social 

issues

Creation of value 
for people, goods, 

money, 
knowledge and 

nature

Outcome

The Sekisui Chemical Group

Principles

Strategies

Business foundation (capital used for business activities) Return of 
resourcesInput

Medium-term 
Management Plan CSR Medium-term Plan

Business activities performed by three 
divisional companies

HPP Housing UIEP

Social issues in 
home living

Social issues in the 
chemicals field

People, goods, 
money, knowledge, 

and nature that 
exists in society

Business Strategy

We explain earnings trends and business portfolios 
since introducing the divisional company system, as 
well as discuss our two unique business models and 
current growth strategies.

Medium-term Management Plan

We explain the earnings targets and cash flow strate-
gies in our Medium-term Management Plan SHINKA!-
Advance 2016 from the perspective of operations and 
CSR.

Human 
Capital

Natural Capital

Intellectual 
Capital

Social 
Capital
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Performance Trends

Trends in Sales and Operating Income
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6.8

-3.7 -3.1

913.7
845.5

799.7

814.9
856.9 885.1 926.2

958.7 934.2
858.5

915.5
965.1

1,032.4

1,110.9 1,096.31,112.7 1,097.0

FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16*
(Plan)

Operating
Income
(Billions of yen)

Growing Sekisui 21 GS21-Premium600 GS21-Go! Frontier GS21-SHINKA! SHINKA!-Advance 2016

Structural Reform Frontier Pioneering Deep Reform of Business Models Continue business model reforms
New long-term transformation

Net Sales (billions of yen) Operating Income Ratio (%) *April 2016 announced

7.4
7.7

8.2

14.0
23.1

36.4 40.3 45.2 43.0
33.6 36.0

49.3 54.6 59.6

82.5 85.8 89.8

Lehman
Shock

94.0

8.6

Introduction of 
Divisional Companies

The Sekisui Chemical Group introduced a divisional company system and pivoted strate-
gically toward expanding new businesses in order to break out of an earnings slump fol-
lowing the consumption tax hike in 1997. As a result, productivity improved and growth 
was reignited, allowing the Group to avoid posting losses during the 2008 financial crisis 

and the 2014 consumption tax hike. We have strengthened the business structure to 
the point of achieving record-setting profits over the past few years. In fiscal 2016, the 
Group has set its sights on posting record-high profits again for a fourth consecutive 
fiscal year.

Performance Trends
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Creation and management of housing and social infrastructure Solutions based on chemical materials

Core

Growth

Housing and Living
Environment 

Sustainable theme creation by “Co-Creation”

Overseas Overseas Integrate Domestic and Overseas
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Circulation
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“Growing 8” “Growing 8” 

Business Portfolio (Business Domains)
The Sekisui Chemical Group has cre-
ated a business portfolio centered on 
the “Creation and Management of 
Housing and Social Infrastructure” and 
“Chemical Solutions.” We aim to real-
ize sustained growth with business 
strategies aligned with the “Core,” 
“Growth,” and “Nurturing & Creation” 
stages* of development.
* Core Stage: business supporting company-wide profit; 

Growth Stage: business that drives company-wide growth; 
Nurturing and Creation Stage: en route to becoming a 
growth business and next-generation theme.

Business Portfolio
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The Sekisui Chemical Group is engaged in a broad range of businesses, from large items 
like houses to small items like LCD materials. One business model cannot encompass all 
of our products. Here, we explain our two primary business models.

Supply Chain Business Model for Interlayer Film
The Group’s products derive their competitiveness from prominence in technology. 
In the interlayer film business, we differentiate from the competition with our materi-
als technologies, such as resin design. To maintain this competitive edge and sustain 
growth, we intend to further hone competitiveness through vigorous horizontal and ver-
tical business development. 
 As a specific example of vertical business development, we have has acquired PVA 
resin operations, a starting material for interlayer films. In terms of horizontal business 
development, we are constantly reviewing its allocation of resources to achieve an opti-
mal production system through a production network in the major regions of Japan, the 
U.S., Europe and Asia, in order to address specific needs in markets where demand is 
growing worldwide. In the interlayer film business, we have created higher value added 
with new and improved product performance, while at the same time rapidly and appro-
priately pursuing vertical and horizontal business development as well as building out a 
supply chain with zero gaps. These achievements have become sources of strength in 
the business.

Cyclical Business Model for Housing and Living Environment Businesses
Our modular housing is highly industrialized housing (in-factory production ratio of 80%) 
with excellent features stemming from our ability to design all of the homes to high stan-
dards for basic performance in terms of airtightness and heat insulation. The unit construc-
tion method is a method that separates the skeleton (structural frame) of the home from 
its infill (interiors, equipment, etc.). Based on modular units comprising robust structural 
frames that last many long years, interiors can be readily altered and converted, a major 
advantage of this construction method. In addition, the parts and materials used in the 
construction of the home and other relevant data is managed and stored for each resi-
dence, another advantage of factory production.
 Based on these advantages, we have established a cyclical business model that begins 
in the new housing construction business, where we are able to provide closed-loop hard-
ware and services (i.e., renovation and circulation of pre-owned homes) by addressing the 
age of the building and changes in family compositions, so that residents can live safely 
and comfortably in their homes for 60 years or longer.

Business Models

Business Models

Supply Chain Business Model (Interlayer Films)

Cyclical Business Model (Housing and Living Environment Businesses)

PVA PVB Interlayer 
Film Automotive 

Laminated 
Glass

Automobile

(2) 
Horizontal 
Business 
Development 

(1) Vertical Business Development 

Current entry pointNew entry point

Renovation for 
improving livability

Maintain and expand HFC*

Maintenance and renovation

Inspect and analyze

Owner
support

Integrating customer
information

Guarantees

Inspections

Diagnosis

Home visits

Assessments

Support

Acquire and re-sell 
secondhand homes

New entry point

General renovation

Interiors, exteriors, 
supplies

Rebuilding homes

Change of residence

Brokerage
services

New entry point

Businesses for 
the elderly

Oasis (nursing care services)
Serviced housing for the elderly

*HFC: Heim Family Circle, Owner of our housing.
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The Sekisui Chemical Group has created a business portfolio with distinctive strengths in 
the fields of new housing construction, home renovation, water-related social infrastructure, 
building materials, automobiles and transportation, electronics and life science, centered on 
the two major concepts of “Creation and Management of Housing and Social Infrastructure” 
and “Chemical Solutions.”
 We have classified each business in its portfolio into one of three stages of 
development, “Core,” “Growth,” and “Nurturing & Creation”, based on their relative 
strengths and potential for growth. We have created growth strategies using these 
classifications that combined together will enable us to realize sustained growth over the 
medium and long term.
 For example, new home construction is the “Core” of the housing business, and home 
renovation is the “Growth” part of the business.
 “Growth” businesses are businesses likely to see strong growth during the Medium-
term Management Plan. To realize their growth, these businesses are prioritized in the 
allocation of budgets for R&D, capital investment, and M&A in relevant areas.
 “Core” businesses are businesses in which we have already established a firm footing 
in markets, and are likely to have stable earnings. From a cash flow perspective, the cash 
generated by “Core” businesses is reinvested in “Growth” and “Nurturing & Creation” 
businesses in order to achieve growth as a Group over the medium and long terms.
 We are advancing growth strategies that strike a balance between current earnings 
and future earnings potential. On occasion, “Growth” businesses have lost their growth 
potential due to recent technological advances or rapid changes in the market. Meanwhile, 
“Core” businesses are unlikely to generate earnings if we just sit around idly.
 For these reasons, we are still focused on the future markets for “Growth” businesses 
(i.e., business growth potential), but are now paying more attention to “Core” businesses, 
constantly working to hone the businesses while looking for ways to delve deeper into new 
domains. We revise our growth strategies when the need arises.

Growth Strategy

Growth Strategy

B
usiness G

row
th O

pportunities

Business Relative Strength

“Growing 8”

Cultivate the Next Growth Businesses

Structural Reform and Margin Improvement Support Companywide Earnings for Stable Profit-making

Lead Companywide Growth

Creation
Business

Nurturing
Business

Growth Business
“Growing 8”

Core
Business

Strategic Investments

Business Upgrade

Concentrated
Strategic

Investments Core
Business

Our Growth Strategy
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Basic Strategies
After reporting record high operating income for the first time in 19 years in fiscal 2013, 
Sekisui Chemical put in place the SHINKA!-Advance 2016 Medium-term Management 
Plan, which covers the three-year period from fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2016. Under this plan, 
the Company has outlined initiatives aimed at enhancing its corporate value from a long-
term perspective with the ongoing goal of increasing earnings.
 The SHINKA!-Advance 2016 comprises two basic strategies aimed at advancing the 
Company’s evolution: the three SHINKA business models for corporate operations and 
CSR SHINKA.

Profit Plan 
At the start of the SHINKA!-Advance 2016 Medium-term Management Plan, the Company 
set the operating income target of ¥100 billion for fiscal 2016, the final year of the plan. In 
working toward this target, the plan calls for 10% average annual growth in the Company’s 
Growth stage businesses. The plan has also set the target to raise the operating income 
ratio, which the Group uses as an earnings barometer, by 0.6 of percentage point from 
7.4% in fiscal 2013 to 8.0% in fiscal 2016.
 As we expand Growth stage businesses, we will also aim to raise ROE by a full per-
centage point from 9.0% in fiscal 2013 to 10.0% or higher in fiscal 2016. After achieving 
record-high operating income for the first time in 19 years in fiscal 2013, the new medium-
term management plan calls for continuing to build income to new record levels.

Medium-term Management Plan SHINKA!-Advance 2016

Medium-term Management Plan SHINKA!-Advance 2016

(2) Frontier SHINKA

“Co-Creation”

(1) Core Business SHINKA

Change
• Sharpen of existing businesses
• Specialize of strategic business and products

(3) Global SHINKA

Mannfacturing/Base Technology

M&A and Strategic Investment

CSR SHINKA

Stage1

Stage2

• Pioneer of new markets and new fields
   through internal and external alliances

• Reinforced expansion
   of existing businesses

Localize of “prominent 
business models”
• Accelerate adoption to
   local society

Three SHINKA business models

FY2013 FY2016 (Medium-term Management Plan 
SHINKA!-Advance 2016 Target)* Difference

Net Sales Operating 
Income

Operating Income 
Ratio Net Sales Operating 

Income
Operating Income 

Ratio Net Sales Operating 
Income

Operating Income 
Ratio

Housing Company 496.8 41.1 8.3 550.0 50.0 9.1 +53.2 +8.9 +0.8

Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products (UIEP) Company 239.9 6.5 2.7 300.0 15.0 5.0 +60.1 +8.5 +2.3

High Performance Plastics (HPP) Company 353.8 36.1 10.2 390.0 45.0 11.5 +36.2 +8.9 +1.3

Other 20.3 -1.1 — 10.0 -10.0 — -10.3 -8.9 —

Total 1,110.9 82.5 7.4 1,250.0 100.0 8.0 +139.1 +17.5 +0.6

(Billions of yen, %)

*April 2014 announced
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Cash Flow Strategy 
Under the SHINKA!-Advance 2016, the Sekisui Chemical Group is continuing its policy to 
strengthen and enhance the Group’s financial position through expenditures centered on 
strategic investment within the limits of cash flow accumulated primarily from operating 
cash flow and to provide stable returns to shareholders.
 Drawing on the cash flow accumulated over the three-year, fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2016, 
period of the plan, we are stepping up our strategic investment activities. In specific terms, 
we are primarily focusing on large-scale capital investments in Growth stage businesses 
as well as M&As aimed at developing new markets and business fields. We are also 
considering strategic investments in areas necessary to foster next growth businesses as 
well as major next-generation themes.
 Our shareholder return policy will remain unchanged as we continue to provide a 
stable level of dividend payments while targeting a dividend payout ratio of 30% on a 
consolidated basis. Management will adopt a flexible and long-term approach toward 
repurchasing Company shares, taking into consideration share price trends, demand for 
investment-related funds, and the benefits of raising capital efficiency.

Medium-term Management Plan SHINKA!-Advance 2016

SHINKA!-
Advance 

2016

GS21-
SHINKA!
2nd Stage

Use of Cash Flow
GS21-SHINKA! 2nd Stage

(FY2011-FY2013)

Other
Other

Investment Amount and Breakdown of Strategic Investment

Growing 8

Nurturing
and

Creation

Core

SHINKA!-Advance 2016
(FY2014-FY2016) 

0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

FY06-
FY08

FY09-
FY10

FY11-
FY13

FY14-
FY16
(plan)

180.0

100.0100.0

80.080.0

(Billions of yen)

GS21-Go!
Frontier

GS21-
SHINKA!
1st Stage

Ordinary
Investment
Ordinary

Investment

Ordinary
Investment
Ordinary

Investment

Ordinary
Investment
Ordinary

Investment

Return to
Shareholders

Return to
Shareholders

Return to
Shareholders

Return to
Shareholders

Strategic
Investment
Strategic

Investment

Strategic
Investment
Strategic

Investment

Strategic
Investment
Strategic

Investment

Operating CF: 
235.0
bil. yen

Operating CF: 
250.0
bil. yen
or more
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The Sekisui Chemical Group is committed to promoting a financial strategy that balances 
efforts to improve its management efficient with the aim of securing sustainable growth and 
enhancing its corporate value with measure designed to actively return profits to shareholders.

Basic Stance toward Financial Strategies
Sekisui Chemical has positioned efforts to enhance its corporate value as an important 
priority of management. In order to carry out this priority, the Company is committed 
to achieving the targets identified under its Medium-term Management Plan “SHINKA!-
Advance 2016.” Guided by this plan, the Company is endeavoring to secure sustainable 
growth while building a robust business platform that is resilient to any deterioration in its 
operating environment by promoting the continued evolution of its business model and 
CSR management. Based on this understanding, every effort is being made to ensure 
that funds are applied from a finance perspective to thoroughly improve management 
efficiency and actively return profits to shareholders. Through these means, the Group is 
working to increase capital efficiency and improve its ROE.

Interest-bearing Debt
In the process of carrying out successive medium-term management plans, Sekisui 
Chemical has continued to promote strategies designed to generate growth and worked 
diligently to fortify its financial position. As a result, the Company has maintained a nega-
tive interest-bearing debt balance on a net basis since March 31, 2014. In real terms, the 
Company remains debt free.
 As of the end of March 2016, the balances of interest-bearing debt and cash on hand 

were ¥52.3 billion and ¥68.0 billion, respectively. Accordingly, the Company had a net 
interest-bearing debt balance of negative ¥15.7 billion as of the end of the fiscal year under 
review. Taking into account these factors, the Company continues to maintain a robust 
financial position.

M&As
The Company recognizes the importance of pursuing M&A opportunities in order to secure 
further growth. With this in mind, the Company will actively engage in projects that align 
with its business strategies focusing mainly on growth fields.
 From a business strategy perspective, each company and the designated divisions of 
the Company’s headquarters are each working to uncover M&A proposals. As a part of 
these efforts, the divisional companies and divisions constantly engage in the exchange 
of information. In order to increase the speed and precision at which each M&A proposal 
is pursued, the Company has prepared an in-house M&A manual. In this manner, the 
Company is endeavoring to share details of the execution process and know-how through-
out its organization. In addition, investments are made in various funds with a view to 
sowing the seeds of future businesses.
 In undertaking an M&A, the Company adopts the capital cost (the weighted average of 
equity and liability costs) attributable to each country as quantitative criteria in its decision-
making process. Steps are taken to evaluate the value of each company together with 
potential synergy effects. In adopting this procedure, the Company is better positioned to 
make a flexible and informed investment decision while at the same time broadening the 
depth of its prime project selection pool.

Financial Strategies

Interest-bearing Debt Main M&As

As of the 
end of Mar. 

2013

As of the 
end of Mar. 

2014

As of the 
end of Sep. 

2014

As of the 
end of Mar. 

2015

As of the 
end of Sep. 

2015

As of the 
end of Mar. 

2016

Cash on Hand 91.1 107.7 98.3 87.2 92.6 68.0

Interest-bearing 
Debt 115.3 94.0 73.9 63.1 58.8 52.3

Net Interest-bearing 
Debt 24.2 -13.7 -24.4 -24.1 -33.8 -15.7

Date Acquired Companies and Businesses Acquisition Purpose

Oct. 2006 Daiichi Pure Chemicals Co., Ltd. (currently SEKISUI CHEMICAL 
CO., LTD.) Strengthen the medical business

Jul. 2009 Polyvinyl alcohol resin business acquired from group companies of 
the Celanese Corporation chemical company of the United States.

Stable raw material supply structure for 
the interlayer film

Jan. 2011 Acquired the diagnostic business from US-based Genzyme Cor-
poration. Strengthen the medical business

Apr. 2011 Suzutora Corporation (currently Sekisui Nano Coat Technology 
Co., Ltd.) 

Strengthen thin membrane manufacturing 
with a focus on ITO film business

Jun. 2015 ENAX Promoting the development of lithium-ion 
batteries

Dec. 2015 EIDIA Co., Ltd (Eisai subsidiary) Strengthen the diagnostic business

(Billions of yen, %)

Financial Strategies
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ROE
The Company recognized the importance that investors place on ROE as an index to 
measure the management efficiency of a company. As such, the Company has positioned 
ROE as one of its priority financial benchmarks.
 Put simply, there are two broad methods to improve ROE (net income attributable 
to owners of parent/average shareholders’ equity). Based on this calculation, the first is 
to reduce the balance of the denominator of the equation, shareholders’ equity, and the 
second to increase the numerator, net income. For the most part, the Company focuses 
on effort to secure growth. Accordingly, the Company works diligently to increase the 
numerator, net income, in its bid to improve ROE.
 In recent years, the Company has successfully implemented its growth strategies. 
Against the established ROE target of 10%, the Company has reported two consecutive fiscal 
years where its ROE has surpassed this 10% benchmark. In specific terms, ROE came in at 
10.9% in both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2015. Looking ahead, the Company will continue to make 
strategic investments in growth businesses and promote the effective application of assets. 
Through these means, the Company will actively target further improvements in ROE.

Acquisition of Own Shares
The Company adopts a flexible approach toward the acquisition of its own shares. While 
taking into consideration the balance between stock price trends and the demand for 
investment funds, the Company believes that the acquisition of its own shares is a means 
to improve capital efficiency and to complement the payment of dividends thereby provid-
ing adequate returns to shareholders from a long-term perspective.
 The Company does not have a fixed policy relating to the Company’s actions after the 
acquisition of its owns shares. Steps are taken, however, to retire treasury stock on a flex-
ible basis taking into account operating conditions. With this in mind, the Company held 
roughly 21,890,000 shares of treasury stock as of March 31, 2016. During the fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2017, the Company plans to acquire its own shares to maximum limit of 
15,000,000 shares.

Status of Treasury Stock

As of the
 end of Mar. 

2014

As of the
 end of Sep. 

2014

As of the
 end of Mar. 

2015

As of the
 end of Sep. 

2015

As of the
 end of Mar. 

2016

Treasury Stock 22,994 22,418 20,582 32,137 21,892

(Treasury Stock 
Acquisition) 8,714 10,633 12,000

(Retirement of 
Treasury Stocks) -12,000 -10,000

Number of Shares 
Outstanding 532,507 532,507 520,507 520,507 510,507

Treasury Stock 
Holdings Ratio 4.31 4.21 3.95 6.17 4.28

(Thousands of shares, %)

Moritoshi Naganuma
Executive Officer
Head of Corporate Finance & 
Accounting Department

ROE and Shareholders’ Equity

(%)

FY13FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY14
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(Billions of yen)
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6.56.5

403.8403.8
322.0322.0 339.7339.7 351.7351.7

418.6418.6 456.8456.8
516.3516.3 523.1523.1

6.46.4

3.53.5

6.96.9
8.18.1 7.87.8

9.49.4

FY15

10.910.910.910.9

0.30.3

ROE(left) Shareholders’ Equity (right)

358.9358.9 342.0342.0

Financial Strategies
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Performance—Reports from Divisional Companies—

The Sekisui Chemical Group comprises three strongly independent divisional companies that aim to 
differentiate from the competition through prominence based on innovative technologies: the High 
Performance Plastics Company in terms of global business development, the Housing Company 
in terms of improving the functionality of homes, and the Urban Infrastructure & Environmental 
Products Company in terms of solutions for aging infrastructure. Here, we review performance in 
fiscal 2015 and discuss our growth strategies for the future.

Performance

Social 
needs 

Social 
needs

Output 
from 

resources

Resources

Value created by the Sekisui Chemical Group

Output

Provision of 
products and 
services that 
solve social 

issues

Creation of value 
for people, goods, 

money, 
knowledge and 

nature

Outcome

The Sekisui Chemical Group

Principles

Strategies

Business foundation (capital used for business activities) Return of 
resourcesInput

Medium-term 
Management Plan CSR Medium-term Plan

Business activities performed by three 
divisional companies

HPP Housing UIEP

Social issues in 
home living

Social issues in the 
chemicals field

People, goods, 
money, knowledge, 

and nature that 
exists in society

Business activities performed by three divisional companies

High Performance 
Plastics Company

Housing 
Company

Urban Infrastructure 
& Environmental 

Products Company
We cover our 
growth strat-

egy for the Urban 
Infrastructure & 
Environmental 

Products Company 
and structural re-
forms undertaken 

in Japan and 
overseas in mainly 

fiscal 2015. 

We explain our 
measures to in-

crease orders and 
improve earnings 

in the Housing 
Company amid 

tough conditions 
on the newly built 
housing market.

We discuss 
growth strat-

egy for the High 
Performance 

Plastics Company, 
centered on four 

strategic fields 
being developed 

globally.

Human 
Capital

Natural Capital

Intellectual 
Capital

Social 
Capital
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(Billions of yen) FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Assets 296.3 321.3 341.2 357.7 382.4

Depreciation and 
Amortization 18.8 19.2 18.4 16.6 18.1

Capital Expenditures 16.7 14.5 17.6 17.9 23.5

R&D Expenditures 11.9 13.5 14.6 15.9 16.7

Number of Employees 6,443 6,545 6,858 7,051 7,453

Consolidated Subsidiaries 
(Overseas Companies) 59(46) 57(44) 59(46) 60(47) 62(48)

20.620.6 23.223.2
36.136.1

46.046.0
54.054.0

296.9296.9
332.0332.0 353.8353.8 372.3372.3 371.0371.0

6.9%6.9% 7.0%7.0%

10.2%10.2%

Net Sales (left)

0

200

400

600

0

40

80

120
(Billions of yen) (Billions of yen)

FY11 FY12* FY13 FY14 FY16
(Plan)

Operating Income (right)

Operating Income Ratio

12.3%12.3%
14.6%14.6%

53.453.4

378.6378.6

FY15

14.1%14.1%

 Automotive bumper components  Foaming material for automotive interiors  Interlayer film 
for automotive laminated glass  Blood coagulation analyzers  Cholesterol diagnostic reagents 

 Double-sided LED fixed placement tape used in smartphones and tablet computers  Conduc-
tive fine particles  Thermal expansion fire-resistant materials  Chlorinated polyvinyl chloride 
(CPVC) resin compound

Performance Highlights

High Performance Plastics 
(HPP) Company

1 2 3

4

75

8

9

6

High Performance Plastics (HPP) Company

* Amount includes ¥32.7 billion in sales and ¥1.3 billion in operating income for the period of 
January to March 2012 due to the revised accounting period for overseas subsidiaries effected 
in fiscal year 2012.
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Keita Kato
President of High Performance 
Plastics Company

We will introduce high-value-added products using our unmatched 
“prominent” technology in markets and fields with prospects for 
high future growth with the aim of establishing the HPP Company as 
the global leader in those fields. We will also flexibly develop global 
operations geared to specific market conditions and characteristics.

Business Strategies

Business Overview

The High Performance Plastics (HPP) Company’s strengths are its original fine particle, adhesion, precise 
synthesis, and other technologies upon which it develops a wide range of businesses centered on providing 
materials for advanced technology fields. 
 The HPP Company focuses on business development driven by high value-added products and commands 
top global market shares for products ranging from conductive fine particles and liquid crystal sealants to 
interlayer films for automotive laminated glass, polyolefin foam for automobile interiors, and cholesterol diag-
nostic reagents.
 The HPP Company is the primary operating income generator for the Sekisui Chemical Group and is introduc-
ing competitive products into global markets with the aim of achieving earnings growth that outpaces the global 
economic growth rate. Under the new medium-term management plan, the HPP Company will fortify its current 
core products, develop new products, augment its operations through M&A and other measures in its four stra-
tegic fields of Electronics, Automobiles and Transportation, Building and Infrastructure, and Life Sciences.

Press Releases on HPP Company’s Topics

High Performance Plastics (HPP) Company

http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2015/1262530_23622.html
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2015/1266412_23622.html
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2015/__icsFiles/afieldfile/2015/11/20/151120_en.pdf
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2015/1275380_23622.html
http://www.sekisui.co.jp/news/2016/1279866_26476.html
http://www.sekisui.co.jp/news/2016/__icsFiles/afieldfile/2016/03/10/160310.pdf
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Record high profit for three 
consecutive fiscal years
The HPP Company reported a substantial increase in earn-
ings posting record high profit for a third consecutive fiscal 
year in fiscal 2015. This was largely attributable to steady 
growth in net sales across all four of the company’s stra-
tegic fields. Among a host of factors, the increase in sales 
volume in the Automobiles and Transportation field sup-
ported by an improved product mix thanks to the shift to 
high value-added products in particular contributed to the 
strong result. Moreover, the company’s operating income 
ratio hit an unprecedented level, climbing 1.8 percentage 
points compared with the previous fiscal year, to 14.1%.
 Looking at the HPP Company’s four strategic fields in 
light of the market environment throughout fiscal 2015, 
trends in interlayer films for automotive laminated glass in 
the Automobiles and Transportation business in Europe and 
the United States were sound. Sales growth was especially 
strong for high-performance and high value-added products 
for use in the head-up displays mounted on luxury models.
 In the Life Science field, sales of cholesterol diag-
nostic reagents, where demand remains firm, diagnostic 
reagent systems including influenza test kits, and testing 
equipment grew steadily both in Japan and overseas. 
 Meanwhile, results in the Electronics field were 
impacted by adjustments in the manufacture of mobile 
devices due mainly to the slowdown in economic growth 
in China. Despite the startup of operations at the com-
pany’s CPVC plant in Thailand, the HPP Company inevita-
bly struggled in the building and infrastructure business 
owing mainly to political instability in the Middle East, 
which triggered a slump in the construction market.
 While growth in the four strategic business fields 
was uneven in fiscal 2015, profit for the HPP Company as 
a whole exceeded initial plans. At the same time, efforts 
to rationalize underperforming products by reforming 
the business structure helped to improve the operating 

Fiscal 2015 Performance
income ratio. Looking at the factors that contributed 
to the increase in operating income in fiscal 2015, the 
company’s results were buoyed by the upswing in sales 
volume, the increase in marginal profit on the back of 
improvements in the product mix, and successful efforts 
to reduce costs thanks to the decrease in raw material 
prices. As a result, operating income climbed ¥7.4 billion 
compared with the previous fiscal year.

Steady progress in carrying 
out medium- to long-term strategies
In the fiscal year under review, the HPP Company achieved 
an increase in revenue and earnings. At the same time, 
the company took definitive steps to push forward three 
growth strategies and was successful in further fortify-
ing the fours strategic fields, strengthening the overseas 
business, and creating new products and businesses.
 In order to further fortify its four strategic fields, the HPP 
Company undertook active investments in expanding its 
interlayer film plant in Mexico and acquiring EIDIA Co., Ltd. 

with the aim of boosting the diagnostic reagent business. 
Moreover, steps were taken to reform the structure of the 
company’s electronics business by shifting to semiconduc-
tors thereby alleviating the dependence on mobile devices in 
the HPP Company’s overseas operations. Successful efforts 
were also made to reinforce the company’s global purchas-
ing structure. As far as the company’s new product and busi-
ness activities are concerned, considerable progress was 
made in the development of promising products including 
self-luminous interlayer films for use in head-up displays.
 Drawing on the underlying strengths of sound perfor-
mance trends as well as steady progress in the promo-
tion of growth strategies, the HPP Company recognized 
the importance of strengthening its business foundation 
in anticipation of entering the next stage of growth. As 
a result, the company took steps to reform its business 
structure by reorganizing domestic sales companies and 
the tape business, integrating the film business, and 
investing in funds as well as Dexerials Corporation in a 
bid to uncover the seeds for new business activities.

Analysis of Operating Income for FY2015 (year-on-year)
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Targeting an increase in operating income 
despite a harsh market environment
The Sekisui Chemical Group is aware that business con-
ditions in each of the HPP Company’s mainstay markets 
including Japan will become difficult throughout fiscal 2016, 
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2017. The company is also 
anticipating a turnaround in the foreign currency exchange 
market with value of the yen appreciating sharply.
 Under these circumstances, the HPP Company plans to 
further bolster its earning power by shifting to high-perfor-
mance, high value-added products in the global markets of 
each of its four strategic fields. Cognizant of the difficulties 
involved in continuously working toward a high-profit com-
pany, the HPP Company is determined to take on each new 
challenge in a bid to further strengthen its earning power.
 Net sales in fiscal 2016 are projected to fall ¥7.6 bil-
lion year on year, to ¥371 billion. This is largely due to the 
impact of foreign currency conversion. Despite this decline 
in sales, the HPP Company is targeting a fourth consecu-
tive fiscal year of record earnings growth. The goal is to 
secure operating income of ¥54 billion, up ¥0.6 billion, 
and an operating income ratio of 14.6%. These targets for 
both operating income and the operating income ratio sig-
nificantly exceed the forecasts set when the Company’s 
Medium-Term Management Plan was first launched.
 Looking at factors that affect the company’s operating 
income, movements in foreign currency exchange rates 
are expected to have a negative impact of ¥5 billion. In con-
trast, the quantity and composition of sales is projected to 
have a positive impact of ¥9.8 billion. The negative impact 
of movements in foreign currency exchange rates reflects 
appreciation in the value of the yen against the U.S. dollar 
from ¥120 in fiscal 2015 to ¥110 in fiscal 2016. 
 Turning to the quantity and composition of sales in fis-
cal 2015 in more detail, the Automobiles and Transportation 
field as well as the Life Science field experienced steady 
growth. On the other hand, sales in the Electronics field 

declined substantially owing mainly to adjustments in the 
manufacture of mobile devices. Accounting for each of 
these factors, sales climbed ¥4.9 billion year on year. In 
fiscal 2016, the Automobiles and Transportation as well 
as the Life Science fields are again expected to expand. 
The HPP Company is also targeting an upswing in the 
Electronics field on the back of an increase in the pickup of 
new mobile device models. Based on the aforementioned, 
profits are forecast to climb ¥9.8 billion year on year.

Securing an upswing in profit on the 
back of life science business growth
Fiscal 2016 is the final year of the current Medium-Term 
Management Plan. As such, the HPP Company will put 
the finishing touches on ongoing measures during fiscal 
2016. In addition to bolstering measures in the compa-
ny’s four strategic fields, overseas as well as new prod-
uct and business engines of growth, energies will be 
channeled toward completing the current Medium-Term 
Management Plan and putting in place a new Medium-
Term Management Plan in a timely fashion.
 In the Electronics business, the HPP Company will 
focus on the liquid crystal and mobile device sectors, areas 

in which the company excels. At the same time, the com-
pany will lower its dependence on markets where condi-
tions are volatile. Steps will be taken to accelerate the pace 
of development in the semiconductor and organic EL fields 
in a bid to broaden the scope of the company’s activities. 
In the Automobiles and Transportation business, the HPP 
Company will continue to pioneer new product fields and 
regions while strengthening global collaboration. Taking 
into consideration the limited product scope in the building 
and infrastructure business, the company will continue to 
expand by focusing on core and peripheral products includ-
ing CPVC. In the Life Science field, the HPP Company will 
make the most of synergies with the newly acquired EIDIA 
Co., Ltd. as the means to generate sales growth.
 In the overseas business, every effort will be made to 
step up activities aimed at becoming an approved global 
vendor for semiconductors.
 Turning to new products and new businesses, the 
HPP Company will accelerate the priority allocation to high-
quality themes while continuing to increase new product 
brought to the market. Furthermore, the company will pur-
sue new businesses by utilizing investment in funds and 
other activities undertaken during the previous fiscal year.

Fiscal 2016 Plan

Analysis of Operating Income for FY2016 (year-on-year)
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HPP Company and Market Data
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 In-house production in progress inside the Housing Unit Factory  A housing unit being in-
stalled  The Smart Power Station series is aimed at enabling energy self-sufficiency (  come  
as standard features for the Smart Heim series)  A large-capacity solar power generation system        

 The e-Pocket large-capacity storage battery system  The Company’s Smart Heim Navi Consulting 
HEMS  The housing production factory in Thailand  Kitchen renovation  Bath renovation
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Housing Company

In the housing business, we aim to increase orders by improving 
product differentiation, such as with energy self-sufficient smart 
houses, and increase profit by maximizing the in-factory production 
ratio to boost cost competitiveness. We plan to increase the Living 
Environment business by leveraging the features of industrialized 
products to offer optimized renovation proposals.

Business Strategies

Business Overview

The Housing Company has established a unique position in Japan in new housing construction as a specialist in 
the Unit Construction Method, an advanced factory-built approach that enables short construction periods and 
delivers functions in accordance with design plans. 
 Responding to the increasingly sophisticated needs of customers, the Housing business has moved high-
performance housing forward, guided by the concepts of environment, reliability, and comfort. It was in particu-
lar an early mover in housing with solar-power generation systems, going back to 1997 when it first scaled up 
such initiatives, and its cumulative sales of such residences exceeded 170,000 units as of the end of 2015. 
 The company achieved another milestone in April 2012 with the release of its Smart Heim models with standard 
features such as built-in storage batteries and the Smart Heim Navi Home Energy Management System (HEMS).
 In the Living Environment business, it draws on the features of its factory-built housing products 
and its database of the housing stock it has constructed to offer renovation proposals best suited to 
the life stage of each homeowner. We are also developing our management of existing home sales, 
leasing and management, and other housing asset management operations as well as residential ser-
vices, including the construction and operation of housing with support services for senior citizens. In 
addition, the company is expanding its new construction housing operation overseas.

Press Releases on Housing Company’s Topics

Shunichi Sekiguchi
President of Housing Company

http://www.sekisui.co.jp/news/2015/__icsFiles/afieldfile/2015/07/02/150702.pdf
http://www.sekisuiheim.com/info/press/20150819.html
http://www.sekisui.co.jp/news/2015/__icsFiles/afieldfile/2015/09/10/150910_1_1.pdf
http://www.sekisuiheim.com/info/press/20160225.html
http://www.sekisui.co.jp/news/2016/__icsFiles/afieldfile/2016/04/18/160414.pdf
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Analysis of Operating Income for FY2015 (year-on-year)
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Decline in sales and profit owing mainly 
to the slump in orders in fiscal 2014 and 
the first half of fiscal 2015
The Housing Company incurred a downturn in sale and 
profit in fiscal 2015. In specific terms, net sales came to 
¥473.4 billion, a decrease of ¥20.7 billion compared with 
the previous fiscal year. Operating income totaled ¥36.4 
billion, down ¥4.9 billion year on year. The company was 
unable to avoid a downturn in sales and profit in the first 
half of the fiscal year under review. This was largely due to 
the insufficient order backlog at the start of the term as a 
result of the slump in orders in fiscal 2014. Amid the recov-
ery in orders, the Housing Company took steps to control 
non-essential fixed costs. On this basis, operating income 
in the second half of fiscal 2015 amounted to ¥20.1 billion, 
coming close to the record level of ¥20.6 billion reported 
for the second half of fiscal 2014. Taking each of these fac-
tors into consideration, the order backlog as of the start of 
fiscal 2016 exhibited a positive turnaround.

Shift in housing orders from a 
self-sufficiency concept to a recovery trends
Turning to order activities in fiscal 2015, excessive con-
cerns following a review of the energy feed-in tariff (FIT) 
system introduced the previous year had a temporary 
negative impact on the smart house market. Against 
this backdrop, the Housing Company took thoroughgo-
ing steps to promote an energy self-sufficiency concept 
thereby alleviating any dependence on revenues from the 
sale of electric power by making the most of the unique 
high in-factory production ratio features of its products.
 During the fiscal year under review, the Housing 
Company vigorously pushed forward a series of initia-
tives. In addition to the introduction of new products, 
the company undertook a variety of activities including 
simultaneous nationwide sales promotions. Through fac-
tory tours and other initiatives, the Housing Company also 

effectively differentiated itself from competitors. Drawing 
on the underlying strength of demand from first-time 
buyers, the company actively marketed properties with 
houses built for sale. Thanks to the success of these mea-
sures, orders exhibited a modest recovery. As a result, the 
year-on-year decline in orders was held to 5% for the first 
half of the fiscal year under review. This improved to a 
year-on-year increase of 5% in the second half. Looking at 
the order backlog at the start of fiscal 2016, the Housing 
Company reported a positive turnaround and increase for 
the first time in four business terms on an interim basis.
 Orders for Smart Power Station homes, an iconic 
smart house product that combines solar power genera-
tion, storage battery, and home energy management sys-
tem (HEMS) features increases 4% compared with the 
previous fiscal year. In specific terms, orders decreased 
12% in the first half and surged 26% in the second half. 
Orders for properties with houses built for sale climbed 
9% year on year.
 In January 2016, the Housing Company launched the 
GRAND TO YOU f series of high cost performance Smart 
Power Station homes as a part of its built-for-sale housing 
activities. The company has also initiated measures aimed at 
further increasing the volume orders in the next fiscal year.

Downturn in solar power generation 
systems offset by renovation product and 
real estate business activities in the Living 
Environment business
In the renovation business, the Housing Company was 
successful in conducting sales promotions of packaged 
products (baths, vanities, toilets, and related products) 
aimed at bolstering its lineup of mainstay products (includ-
ing the new release of storage batteries) and upgrading 
and expanding customer proposals. However, net sales 
declined 5% compared with the previous fiscal year as the 
12% year-on-year increase in renovation products failed to 

offset the drop in solar power generation systems reflect-
ing excessive concerns following the review of the FIT 
system in similar fashion to the housing business. Buoyed 
by efforts to strengthen the company’s focus on periodic 
diagnosis activities, the renovation of old houses continues 
to increase. As such, these activities provide a stepping-
stone for capturing additional orders in the next fiscal year.
 Meanwhile, the company’s real estate activities (leas-
ing and management, rental management, and existing 
home sales), which are included in the Living Environment 
business, exhibited steady trends. Net sales for the fiscal 
year under review grew 10% compared with the previous 
fiscal year. Looking at net sales of the Living Environment 
business as a whole, results for both the first and second 
halves were essentially unchanged compared with the 
previous fiscal year.

Fiscal 2015 Performance

Housing Company
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Analysis of Operating Income for FY2016 (year-on-year)

(Billions of yen)
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Promoting inherently unique “Sekisui 
Heim” strengths to further boost profit
In fiscal 2016, the Housing Company’s goals are to become 
Japan’s No. 1 provider of smart houses and to return to its 
original unit product approach. The company’s competitive 
advantage stems from the high fundamental functions of 
its unit housing and product strengths of its smart houses. 
By implementing measures that make the most of its 
unique Sekisui Heim features, the Housing Company is 
targeting a return to increased profit.
 In addition, the business environment in which the com-
pany operates is experiencing favorable trends as the focus 
on self-sufficiency continues to mount. This is largely attrib-
utable to growing interest in energy efficiency against the 
backdrop of a negative interest rate environment and liberal-
ization of the electricity sector. Taking into consideration each 
of these factors, net sales in fiscal 2016 are projected to reach 
¥494 billion, an increase of ¥20.6 billion. Operating income is 
forecast to come in at ¥38 billion, up ¥1.6 billion year on year.

Incorporating the attributes of geographic
 regions and customers to enhance product devel-
opment capabilities in the Housing business
The Housing Company is introducing products to the market 
that are tailored to the needs of each region and customers. 
At the same time, the company is expanding sales of smart 
houses. In January 2016, the Housing Company launched 
the GRAND TO YOU f series of detached houses for regional 
areas and other detached houses with increased security 
features. Targeting the urban market, the company released 
the G series of detached houses that boast strengthened 
zero energy home (ZEH) features and a sophisticated design 
in April 2016. Financial initiatives including the negative inter-
est rate policy adopted by the Bank of Japan are motivat-
ing first-time buyers to purchase a new home. In an effort 
to capitalize on this positive operating environment, the 
Housing Company will introduce 2,400 subdivisions of mar-
ketable properties, an increase of 26% compared with the 
previous fiscal year. In addition, the company will increase 
the number of sales personnel by 250 as a part of efforts to 
boost its marketing capabilities.

 Buoyed by the introduction of new products and the pickup 
in demand, coupled with aggressive efforts to market land with 
houses built for sale and an increase in the number of sales per-
sonnel, the Housing Company is targeting a 5% improvement in 
order in the fiscal 2016.
 Moving forward the company will continue to advance 
the Factory Efficiency and Presentation Upgrade Plan, an 
initiative that commenced in fiscal 2014. Efforts will also be 
made to conduct simultaneous tours across the company’s 
nationwide network of plants in order to promote the high 
level of housing production quality management as well as 
the growing attractiveness and cutting-edge appeal of the 
company’s manufacturing facilities. In addition to placing 
considerable weight on campaigns as well as the Sekisui 
Heim Series 45th anniversary and other events, energies 
will be channeled toward continuously increasing orders.

Returning to our roots in unit housing 
while undertaking a review of production 
and supply structures and systems
Steps will be taken to initiate structural reforms in the 
Housing business that look beyond fiscal 2017. Trends in 
personnel expenses, which continue to hover at a high 
level, have extended through to the housing construc-
tion frontline. After reducing on-site construction by 15% 
compared with fiscal 2013 over the past two years, the 
Housing Company will look to achieve a reduction of 30% 
by the end of fiscal 2016. The company will endeavor to 
further distinguish itself by returning to the original unit 
product approach and maximizing the in-factory produc-
tion ratio. Moreover, the Housing Company will fine tune 
its production and supply systems for the perspective of 
total optimization in anticipation of a further drop in housing 
starts in the not too distant future.

Rolling out measures to capture renovation 
orders in line with the age of each building 
in the Living Environment business
In the renovation business, the Housing Company mainly 
targets customers residing in Sekisui Heim homes. Buoyed 
by robust trends in new housing starts, the volume of the 
company’s newly sold homes reach a peak around the 1990s. 
These properties are now entering a renovation phase with 
an effective age of between 15 and 25 years. The Housing 

Company is marketing new renovation product packages that 
encompass large-scale expansions and renovation, water-
related facilities, and exterior work to customers residing in 
homes in this effective age bracket. By leveraging product 
packages, the company is lifting the unit price per renovation 
project and improving operating efficiency.
 From a marketing perspective, the Housing Company is 
introducing 60 new sales personnel while adhering strictly to 
a sales policy that focuses on each commercial products and 
home construction years’ category. At the same time, the 
company is conducting education and training to strengthen 
its customer relations structure and boost proposal capabili-
ties. Through these means, and by making the most of the 
Famis 20th anniversary campaign to increase customer con-
tact, the Housing Company is working to expand orders.
 In the real estate business, which is enjoying robust 
conditions, the Housing Company is endeavoring to further 
expand sales by taking on unmanaged rental properties and 
increasing the number of staff for real-estate transactions.
 Drawing on the underlying strengths of these initiatives, 
the Living Environment business as a whole is targeting in 
increase in net sales of 3% compared with fiscal 2015.

Fiscal 2016 Plan

Housing Company
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Housing Company and Market Data
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Residential water supply and drainage system  High corrosion resistant and chemical perfor-
mance brand products  Recycled PVC pipe  Water supply pipe (polyethylene pipe) construc-
tion site  Pharmaceutical and related product storage and sterile transportation bags  Sewage 
heat recovery system  Geothermal heat system  Sewage pipe rehabilitation  Sewage pipe 
maintenance operations  High-performance seismic polyethylene pipe  Plastic sheet for an 
aircraft interior  FFU synthetic railway sleepers

(Billions of yen) FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Assets 164.0 180.2 200.3 198.8 179.1

Depreciation and 
Amortization 6.6 6.1 6.1 6.2 6.4

Capital Expenditures 5.1 7.7 10.5 15.4 8.5

R&D Expenditures 5.3 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.3

Number of Employees 4,570 4,887 5,363 5,453 5,044

Consolidated Subsidiaries 
(Overseas Companies) 51(27) 62(37) 60(36) 56(32) 43(19)

Performance Highlights
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Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products (UIEP) Company

* Amount includes ¥4.9 billion in sales and ¥0.7 billion in operating loss for the period of January 
to March 2012 due to the revised accounting period for overseas subsidiaries effected in fiscal 
year 2012.

Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products 
(UIEP) Company
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Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products (UIEP) Company

Hajime Kubo
President of Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products Company

Business Strategies

The Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products (UIEP) Company 
commands leading market shares from comprehensive strength in 
its fundamental businesses and is creating an operating structure to 
maintain steady profit in contracting markets. It also seeks to boost 
earnings by applying the technologies of its fundamental businesses 
to the existing stock field and other growth fields. 

Business Overview

The Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products (UIEP) Company is a manufacturing and sales leader in 
Japan in water sewerage and supply pipe systems as well as construction materials supply businesses, which 
collectively form the company’s core operating platform.
 In recent years, Japan’s construction-related markets have experienced shrinking demand for new construc-
tion. On a positive note, signs of an increase in demand in the stock field continue to emerge on the back of 
such factors as the aging of existing machinery and equipment. Under these circumstances, the UIEP Company 
has positioned this field as a growth domain and is concentrating its efforts on this area.
 As part of its medium- and long-term growth strategy, the UIEP Company is channeling management re-
sources to its sheet business for high-performance plastic molds as well as its industrial piping materials, per-
formance materials typically used in railway sleepers, and other businesses while drawing on the underlying 
strengths of technologies nurtured through its fundamental business activities. At the same time, the company 
is concentrating on efforts to expand activities in high profitability fields and to cultivate overseas markets.
 In its general-purpose products business, the UIEP Company is continuing to create fully streamlined operations 
in anticipation of declining demand. In low revenue businesses, the company remains committed to a policy of selec-
tion and concentration while carrying out structural reforms. Taking each of the aforementioned into consideration, 
the company is entering a phase during which it will shift its focus firmly toward accelerating the pace of growth.

Press Releases on UIEP Company’s Topics

http://www.sekisui.co.jp/news/2015/1265665_23166.html
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2016/1276219_26507.html
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2016/1282569_26507.html
http://www.sekisuichemical.com/about/whatsnew/2016/1284620_26507.html
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Analysis of Operating Income for FY2015 (year-on-year)
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Profits increased for the first time in 
two business terms on the back of 
structural reforms in Japan and overseas
The UIEP Company positioned fiscal 2015 as a year dur-
ing which it would rebuild its business structure in order 
to attain an operating income ratio of 5%. Throughout 
the fiscal year under review, the company took steps to 
clarify profits by product and technology, and to restruc-
ture its organization by transitioning toward business 
departments based on individual product categories in a 
bid to establish sound initiatives. Complementing these 
endeavors, the UIEP Company implemented a variety of 
measures aimed at fortifying its profit structure both in 
Japan and overseas. Accounting for each of these fac-
tors, operating income increased ¥2.3 billion compared 
with the previous fiscal year, to ¥3.6 billion, despite the 
year-on-year decline in net sales of ¥1.4 billion, to ¥226.3 
billion in fiscal 2015. This increase in profit reversed the 
downward trend that had lasted for two business terms.

Adhering strictly to a policy of profit 
improvement by product in Japan
Turning to the specific measures implemented throughout 
fiscal 2015, the UIEP Company shifted to a profit margin-
driven sales policy by strictly engaging in customer-based 
profit management on a business department basis by 
product in Japan. At the same time, the company worked 
diligently to expand sales of growth products.
 In light of the usual operating practice and con-
centration of sales at the end of each business term in 
March each year, the UIEP Company pushed forward 
measures aimed at securing a more even distribution 
of sales throughout the period. As a result, signs of an 
increasingly even impact on manufacturing and distribu-
tion are beginning to emerge. This in turn is contributing 

to improvements in the manufacturing and distribution 
costs. As part of the company’s structural reforms, the 
UIEP Company also made every effort to reduce inven-
tories at distributors. Moreover, steps were taken to cut-
back distribution costs and direct sales expenses.

Completed overseas structural reforms 
in Europe and the inland areas of China
Meanwhile, the UIEP Company implemented full-fledged 
structural reforms in its Pipeline Rehabilitation business 
in Europe and its Water Infrastructure business in China.
 In the Pipeline Rehabilitation business in Europe, the 
company has traditionally undertaken the supply of compo-
nents combined with installation. Buffeted by the downturn 
in public works attributable to the prolonged deterioration 
in economic conditions in Europe, and the limited prospect 
of a turnaround in the decline in prices reflecting intense 

competition, the UIEP Company completed the transfer of 
this business. In the inland areas of China, the company 
was engaged in the manufacture and sale of wide-diame-
ter reinforced compound plastic pipes commonly used in 
irrigation and related activities. Due again to the prolonged 
contraction in local public works, the UIEP Company deter-
mined that there was little likelihood of a profit recovery in 
near future. Accordingly, steps were taken sell the com-
pany’s equity stake in the operating entity and to withdraw 
from the water infrastructure business.
 As far as the company’s other overseas business 
activities are concerned, energies were channeled toward 
restructuring the Pipeline Rehabilitation business in the 
United States as well as operations in the coastal regions 
of China. In contrast, the UIEP Company undertook capi-
tal investments targeting the aircraft sector in the sheet 
business where growth is expected.

Fiscal 2015 Performance

Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products (UIEP) Company
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Carry out structural reforms and position fiscal 2016 
as a year to establish a robust earnings structure
In fiscal 2016, the UIEP Company completed structural 
reforms that continued in earnest throughout fiscal 2015. With 
this completion, fiscal 2016 has been positioned as a year dur-
ing which the company will pursue new growth. As a result, 
every effort will be made to complete structural reforms in 
the Pipeline Rehabilitation business in the United States, the 
Water Infrastructure business in the coastal regions of China, 
and the low revenue businesses remaining in Japan in the cur-
rent fiscal year. Furthermore, the UIEP Company will expand 
investment in the development of products and services in 
areas that offer the potential for growth both in Japan and 
overseas while working to strengthen sales.
 As a result of these outcomes, and the transfer of control 
over Sekisui Seikei Ltd. and Hinomaru Co., Ltd., which were 
previously classified under the Company’s other businesses, 
net sales of the UIEP Company are projected to reach ¥250 
billion, up ¥23.7 billion compared with fiscal 2015. From a 
profit perspective, operating income is forecast to total ¥10 
billion, an increase of ¥6.4 billion year on year. These forecast 
results represent an upswing in revenue following a down-
turn over the past three business terms, and an increase in 
profit for a second consecutive fiscal year.
 Signs of an improvement in operating income of ¥3.2 bil-
lion owing to the effects of structural reforms implemented 
in fiscal 2015 are already being seen against the full fiscal 
year forecast upswing of ¥6.4 billion. In addition to the ¥1.8 
billion attributable to the aforementioned transfer of two 
companies, the UIEP Company has identified improvements 
totaling ¥5 billion with a high degree of certainty.

Strengthen the company’s earning power 
in Japan and overseas by introducing 
high-value-added products
Looking at the business environment in Japan in fiscal 2016, con-
dominium sales are projected to remain firm. Housing starts and 
public investment, on the other hand, are expected to fall below 
the levels recorded in fiscal 2015. Against this backdrop, the 
UIEP Company will pursue growth by actively introducing high-
value-added products to the market in Japan and increasing the 
amount of development investment. Furthermore, the company 

will build on its customer-based profit management from the pre-
vious fiscal year and introduce a new cost management method 
in a bid to lift efficiency to the next level.
 In the sheet business conducted overseas, the UIEP 
Company will pursue growth in those fields in which it has the 
potential to excel through technologies in such areas as Industrial 
Piping and Performance Materials. The company will also look to 
expand sales in the aircraft field following the start of operations 
at a new plant in the Sheet business, and cultivate new markets 
in Asia, Europe, and the United States for Industrial Piping and 
Performance Materials. Outside Japan, the UIEP Company is 
considering rebuilding its Pipeline Rehabilitation business, which 
engages in the manufacture and sale of products using the pro-
prietary high-value-added SPR method.
 Accounting for each of these factors, plans are in place 
to increase the number of businesses that generate an 
operating income ratio of 10% or higher from three in fiscal 
2015 to five in fiscal 2016.

Growth strategies going forward
In its quest for future growth, the UIEP Company will leverage 
the strengths of its technologies to expand activities in high 
profitability fields while cultivating markets overseas. To this 
end, the company will concentrate management resources 
into areas where it can differentiate its products and boost sales 
through metal alternative, all-plastic product, chemical-, corro-
sion-, weather-resistant, and other technologies in the pipe & 

Fiscal 2016 Plan related products, performance materials, sheet, functional 
case, and other fields. In the general-purpose products and low 
revenue business, the UIEP Company will continue to imple-
ment structural reforms by further promoting efficiency and 
adopting a strict selection and concentration policy.
 In specific terms, the UIEP Company will pursue a variety of 
initiatives in the pipe & related products field. The company will 
promote the shift to all-plastic products and other metal alterna-
tives for use in water supply and drainage, air conditioning, and 
other systems in the construction and civil engineering sector and 
broaden the product domain by introducing new products in a bid 
to fill the product line shortfall in the field of Industrial Piping mate-
rials. Moreover, the company will work to expand its overseas 
business focusing mainly on Southeast Asia. In the Performance 
Materials field, the company will advance the development of 
FFUs as railway sleepers for use in Europe and Australia in ear-
nest while evaluating applications other than as railway sleepers. 
In the sheet business, where the company has been active in 
the overseas aircraft field, operations will commence at a new 
plant in North America in fiscal 2016. At the same time, the UIEP 
Company will work to capture demand in the railcar and medical 
equipment fields while entering markets in Japan.
 The company is assessing opportunities across a wide 
range of other fields. While the scale of each business 
remains small at this stage, the UIEP company will accel-
erate the pace of growth from fiscal 2016 and beyond by 
specializing in high profitability fields.

Analysis of Operating Income for FY2016 (year-on-year)
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UIEP Company and Market Data

Japan Sales

(Billions of yen)
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Review and Analysis of Consolidated Results for Fiscal 2015
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2016

Business Environment
During fiscal 2015, trends in the global economy were 
mixed. Throughout 2014, economic growth in most 
developed countries stalled following the worldwide 
financial crisis. In contrast, emerging markets including 
China and Asia as well as such resource-rich countries 
as Brazil and Russia provided the impetus for a recov-
ery. Entering 2015, the table was reversed. Economic 
conditions in the United States enjoyed a positive turn-
around. The slowdown in the rate of economic growth 
in China, however, placed downward pressure on the 
economies of emerging markets in Asia. Accounting 
for these factors, the global economy as a whole was 
held to a modest recovery. Over the ensuing period, 
economic conditions throughout the world as a whole 
have remained subdued with the outlook for the future 
shrouded in uncertainty. This largely reflects the down-
side risk of a prolonged slowdown in the economies of 

China and resource-rich countries.
 Turning to the domestic economy, Japan has been 
unable to break free from the market correction that fol-
lowing the rush in demand prior to the consumption tax 
rate hike. As a result, private consumption has remained 
weak since autumn 2013. On a positive note, export activ-
ity by the manufacturing industry including the automobile 
and electric appliance sectors has been robust, buoyed by 
the favorable flow on effects of movements in foreign 
currency exchange rates and in particular depreciation in 
the value of yen compared with fiscal 2014. Accounting 
for these factors, the underlying strengths of the corpo-
rate sector has remained intact.
 Looking at the market environment from each of the 
Company’s individual business segment perspectives, 
the housing business field in Japan enjoyed a gradual 
improvement in new housing starts following the mar-
ket correction in the wake of the rush in demand leading 

up to Japan’s consumption tax rate hike. As a result, the 
number of construction starts in fiscal 2015 rebounded 
after a hiatus of two business terms and increased 4.6% 
to 920,537 units.
 Trends in the Water Infrastructure field, which 
includes PVC piping materials, were also relatively firm. 
This was largely due to new condominium construction 
starts, which experienced a positive turnaround for the 
first time in three business terms. Overall trends remained 
relatively firm. Meanwhile, construction labor costs con-
tinued to hover at a high level. As a result, demand for 
public works continued to languish at a low level.
 Overseas business conditions by industry were patchy. 
In the Electronics field, demand stalled negatively impact-
ing the pace of smartphone growth, which had driven mar-
ket in recent years. In the Automobiles and Transportation 
fields, trends in the mainstay automobile market in the 
United States were firm despite signs of stagnant condi-
tions in certain developing countries. Turning to the Life 
science field, which in relative terms is less affected by 
movements in economic conditions, demand for diagnos-
tic reagents in emerging markets grew in line with the 
upswing in living standards. At the same time, demand in 
developed countries was generally stable.
 As far as foreign currency exchange rates are con-
cerned, the yen/U.S. dollar rate which continued to hover 
around ¥120 throughout 2015, saw a sudden and rapid 
rise in the value of the yen entering 2016. As of March 31, 
2016, the value of the yen had appreciated to the ¥112 
level. Taking into consideration the annual average foreign 
currency exchange rates of ¥120 to the U.S. dollar and 
¥133 to the euro in fiscal 2015, the value of the yen to the 
U.S. dollar has depreciated around ¥10 compared with 
the previous fiscal year.

Source: “New construction starts of dwellings,” 
              Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism
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FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14

Net Sales
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Analysis of Business Results and Financial Position
1. Analysis of Business Results for Fiscal 2015
(1) Net sales
Net sales in fiscal 2015 came to ¥1,096,317 million, a 
decrease of ¥16,430 million, or 1.5%, compared with the 
previous fiscal year.
 Of this total, the Housing Company accounted for 
¥473,441 million, down 4.2%. In the fiscal year under 
review, sales and profit declined. This was largely due to 
the drop off in the market in fiscal 2014, which led to a 
downturn in the order backlog at the start of the term. 
Sales in the second half, however, were improved to 
even with the corresponding period of the previous fis-
cal year. As a result, the Housing Company experienced 
an improvement in profit. In the Housing Company’s new 
housing construction business, the number of orders 
was unchanged compared with the previous fiscal year. 
Despite steady trends in built-for-sale housing orders, this 
result was mainly due to the substantial drop off in orders 
for detached houses in the first half of fiscal 2015.
 Under these circumstances, the Housing Company 
focused its efforts on promoting the Smart Power Station 
series of homes that answer the market’s calls for inte-
grated solar power generation systems and storage bat-
teries. Over and above increasing sales through the launch 
of the new wood-frame GRAND TO YOU f series, which 
in addition to complying with the Net Zero Energy House 
(ZEH) standards offers superior energy efficiency at a low 
cost, steps were taken to strengthen built-for-sale hous-
ing activities. For its part, the Living Environment busi-
ness worked to bolster points of contact with customers 
through periodic diagnoses. At the same time, energies 
were directed toward rolling out original renovation menus 
that help to improve the thermal environments of homes.
 The UIEP Company posted net sales of ¥226,279 mil-
lion in fiscal 2015. This was 0.6% lower than the amount 
recorded in fiscal 2014. The company’s domestic business 
sales were essentially unchanged from the previous fiscal 
year. This largely reflected inventory adjustments by dis-
tributors in line with restrained shipments in the Pipeline 

Rehabilitation business and efforts to standardize shipments 
of general products. In the fiscal year under review, the UIEP 
Company took steps to reorganize its overall structure. Rather 
than focus on business fields, the company transitioned to a 
structure that is based on products. In addition to strengthen-
ing profit management by product, considerable weight was 
also placed on increasing the profitability of general products. 
While the company’s overseas business struggled under the 
burden of expenses attributable to structural reforms imple-
mented in the Pipeline Rehabilitation business in the United 
States as well as the deterioration in market conditions in the 
Water Infrastructure business in China, every effort was made 
to promote drastic structural reforms including the transfer of 
the Pipeline Rehabilitation business in Europe.
 Net sales in the HPP Company amounted to ¥378,552 
million in fiscal 2015, an increase of 1.7% compared with 
the previous fiscal year. Despite difficult conditions in the 
Electronics field, the HPP Company reported a fourth con-
secutive fiscal year of increased sales and profit due mainly 
to profit growth in the three Automobiles and Transportation, 
Building and Infrastructure, and Life Science fields. In spe-
cific terms, sales of liquid-crystal materials including fine 
particles and sealants as well as double-sided tapes and 

other products declined. This was mainly due to the impact 
of adjustments in the production of such mobile devices 
as smartphones and tablets reflecting the downturn in the 
pace of economic growth in China and other factors in the 
Electronics field. In the Automobiles and Transportation 
field, results were positively affected by such factors as sta-
ble overseas demand and especially Europe and the United 
States. As a result, sales of high-performance products were 
particularly high. In the Building and Infrastructure field, con-
struction work was completed on facilities in Thailand. In the 
fiscal year under review, operations at a chlorinated polyvi-
nyl chloride (CPVC) resin factory and a resin compound fac-
tory commenced in earnest. Focusing mainly on diagnostic 
reagents and testing equipment, net sales in the life science 
field increased substantially in Japan and overseas.
 Net sales in Other Businesses in fiscal 2015 declined 1.6% 
compared with the previous fiscal year, to ¥38,300 million.

(2) Operating income
Operating income in fiscal 2015 amounted to ¥89,823 
million, an increase of ¥4,058 million, or 4.7%, compared 
with the previous fiscal year.

Operating Income and Operating Income Ratio
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Interest-bearing Debt and Debt/Equity Ratio
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(3) Non-operating income and expenses
Non-operating income decreased ¥8,763 million compared 
with the previous fiscal year. In addition to the absence of 
the foreign exchange gain posted in the previous fiscal year, 
this decrease was mainly attributable to the drop in dividend 
income of ¥309 million. Non-operating expenses increased 
¥2,059 million compared with the previous fiscal year, primar-
ily owing to a ¥3,155 million increase in foreign exchange loss.

(4) Extraordinary income and loss
The Company recorded a gain on sales of investments in 
securities of ¥10,769 million as extraordinary income in 
the fiscal year under review. The Company also incurred 
various extraordinary losses including a loss on transfer 
of business totaling ¥6,638 million, the provision for loss 
on transfer of business of ¥3,241 million, a loss on impair-
ment of fixed assets and goodwill of ¥2,313 million, and a 
loss on sales or disposal of property, plant and equipment 
of ¥1,838 million. As a result, the Company posted a total 
extraordinary loss of ¥14,032 million, up ¥5,201 million, or 
58.9%, compared with the previous fiscal year.

(5) Net income attributable to owners of parent 
Accounting for each of these factors, income before 
income taxes came to ¥77,950 million, a decrease of 
¥6,281 million compared with the previous fiscal year. 
After deducting taxes and net income attributable to 
non-controlling interests, net income attributable to own-
ers of parent came in at ¥56,653 million, up ¥3,658 mil-
lion, or 6.9%, compared with the previous fiscal year. 
Effective from the fiscal year under review, the Company 
has adopted the Accounting Standard for Business 
Combinations (Accounting Standards Board of Japan 
(ASBJ) Statement No. 21 issued on September 13, 2013) 
and reclassified net income as net income attributable to 
owners of parent.

2. Financial Position
(1) Assets, liabilities, and net assets
Total assets as of March 31, 2016 stood at ¥936,043 mil-
lion, a decrease of ¥31,967 million compared with the end 
of the previous fiscal year.

(Assets)
Current assets stood at ¥434,513 million as of the end 
of fiscal 2015, ¥31,651 million lower than the balance 
as of the previous fiscal year-end. The main factor was 
a ¥19,162 million decrease in the balance of cash and 
deposits. Non-current assets declined ¥316 million to 
¥501,530 million.

(Liabilities)
Liabilities declined ¥40,831 million year on year to 
¥391,887 million as of the end of fiscal 2015. The main 
components were decreases of a combined ¥8,939 mil-
lion in notes payable, electronically recorded obligations, 
accounts payable, and accrued expenses, ¥7,498 million 
in accrued income taxes and other taxes, and ¥2,669 
million in advances received along with a decrease of 
¥10,782 million in interest-bearing debt.

(Net assets)
Net assets stood at ¥544,156 million as of the end of fis-
cal 2015, an increase of ¥8,863 million compared with 

Total Assets and Return on Total Assets
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Shareholders’ Equity and Return on Equity
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the previous fiscal year-end. The main factors were a 
¥30,413 million increase in retained earnings due largely 
to net income attributable to owners of parent of ¥56,653 
million and a decrease of ¥13,836 million from dividend 
payments. Appreciation in the value of the yen led to 
downward translation adjustments of ¥10,600 million.

(2) Cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents on a consolidated basis 
amounted to ¥67,104 million as of the end of fiscal 2015, 
an increase of ¥4,323 million compared with the end of 
the previous fiscal year.
 Factors influencing fiscal 2015 cash flow accounts 
were as follows.

(Operating activities)
Net cash provided by operating activities came to ¥71,389 
million, up from ¥67,760 million compared with the pre-
vious fiscal year. This increase in net cash provided by 
operating activities was largely because principal cash 
outflows, which included income taxes paid of ¥30,707 

million and decrease in deposits of ¥10,801 million were 
more than offset by major cash inflows, which comprised 
income before income taxes of ¥77,950 million, depre-
ciation and amortization of ¥34,735 million, and loss on 
transfer of business of ¥6,638 million.

(Investing activities)
Net cash used in investing activities totaled ¥23,715 
million in fiscal 2015. This was compared with net cash 
provided by investing activities of ¥4,127 million in fiscal 
2014. Major cash inflows came from proceeds from sales 
or redemption of investments in securities of ¥21,408 mil-
lion, which included a portion of shareholders in Sekisui 
House, Ltd., and a ¥23,412 million net decrease in time 
deposits. Cash outflows primarily comprised ¥39,444 
million for purchases of property, plant and equipment 
focused on priority and growth fields, ¥12,232 million for 
the acquisition of investments in a subsidiary resulting in 
change in scope of consolidation following the purchase 
of shares of EIDIA Co., Ltd., a company which engages in 
the manufacture and sale of clinical diagnostic reagents, 

and its inclusion in the Company’s scope of consolidation 
as a subsidiary company, and ¥8,314 million for purchases 
of investments in securities.

(Financing activities)
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥41,726 
million compared with ¥63,856 million for the previous fis-
cal year. The principal cash outflows comprised ¥16,783 
million for purchases of treasury stock, ¥14,299 million 
for cash dividends paid including cash dividends paid to 
noncontrolling shareholders of consolidated subsidiaries, 
and a net decrease in interest-bearing debt of ¥11,360 
million.

Review and Analysis of Consolidated Results for Fiscal 2015
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The following factors related to our business and account-
ing practices may materially influence investment deci-
sions. The Company is endeavoring to establish a system 
for anticipating potential risks for the Group, preventing 
their occurrence, and promptly and appropriately dealing 
with them if they occur.
 Forward-looking statements contained herein are 
based upon assessments made by the Sekisui Chemical 
Group at the end of consolidated fiscal year 2015.

1) Foreign Currency Fluctuations
Exchange rates may affect the value of the Group’s over-
seas assets held in foreign currencies when converted 
into yen. The Group employs hedging strategies as 
needed in response to currency fluctuations. However, 
the business results and the financial position of the 
Group may be affected if the exchange rates diverge sig-
nificantly from the forecasted levels.

2) Raw Material Price Volatility
The Group’s business results and financial position may be 
affected in the event that the Group, especially the Urban 
Infrastructure & Environmental Products Company, is 
unable to transfer changes in prices of polyvinyl chloride, 
olefin, steel, or other raw materials to product prices in a 
timely manner and is unable to maintain sufficient margin.

3) Overseas Business Activities
Unforeseeable changes in laws and regulations, fragility 
in the industrial base, and social or political turmoil such 
as terrorism, war, or other factors may affect the Group’s 
overseas business activities. The emergence of such 
risks may disrupt the Group’s overseas business activi-
ties, which would affect the business results and future 
plans of the Group.

4) Housing Related Tax and Interest Rate Trends
The Group’s housing-related businesses are affected by 
domestic taxes and consumption taxes on house pur-
chases and by interest rate trends. These trends may 
impact our housing-related businesses and affect the 
Group’s business results and financial position.

5) Electronics Market Trends
The electronics industry, a market for the Group’s High 
Performance Plastics Company, is characterized by 
severe fluctuations in demand. A rapid drop in demand 
within a short period could affect the Group’s business 
results and financial position.

6) Trends in Public Works
The Group’s Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products 
Company includes products used in the public sector. 
Trends in public works therefore influence the Company’s 
business performance. Public investment is determined by 
government policy at the national and local levels, and deci-
sions to reduce public investment may impact the Group’s 
business performance and financial position.

7) Industrial Accidents and Disasters
A fire, explosion, or other industrial accident at one of 
the Group’s facilities that causes a major impact on the 
Group’s business capability and on the local community 
could damage society’s trust in the Company and incur 
response costs, including compensation costs directly 
related to the accident, business opportunity costs from 
the stoppage of production activity, and compensation 
costs from payments to customers. Such an event may 
affect the Group’s business results and financial position.

8) Intellectual Property and Product Liability
In the event that a dispute arises concerning the Group’s 
intellectual property, the dispute resolution may not be 
favorable to the Group. The discovery of defects in the 
Group’s products may require large-scale product recalls 
and compensation for damages. The possibility exists 
that insurance may not be able to cover associated costs, 
which could impact the Group’s business results and 
financial position.

Business Risks

Business Risks
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Strategy Data
Message from 
the President & CEO

Corporate 
Governance

Foundation—CSR for Strengthening Our Business Foundation—

For the Sekisui Chemical Group, CSR means contributing to society through business activities 
while meeting the expectations of stakeholders. We believe promoting CSR management is an 
essential element of expanding earnings through business activities and improving overall corpo-
rate value.
 With this awareness, we diligently strive to maintain constructive relationships with people, the 
environment, intellectual property and suppliers regardless of the business environment, based on 
the core themes of “Three Prominences” and “Three Attitudes of Sincerity.”

Foundation

Social 
needs 

Social 
needs

Output 
from 

resources

Resources

Value created by the Sekisui Chemical Group

Output

Provision of 
products and 
services that 
solve social 

issues

Creation of value 
for people, goods, 

money, 
knowledge and 

nature

Outcome

The Sekisui Chemical Group

Principles

Strategies

Business foundation (capital used for business activities) Return of 
resourcesInput

Medium-term 
Management Plan CSR Medium-term Plan

Business activities performed by three 
divisional companies

HPP Housing UIEP

Social issues in 
home living

Social issues in the 
chemicals field

People, goods, 
money, knowledge, 

and nature that 
exists in society

Business Foundation (Capital used in Business Activities)

Human 
Capital

Natural Capital
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Capital

Social 
Capital

We pursue CS & 
Quality alongside 
CSR procurement 

based on the 
concept that the 

quality that will al-
ways be specified 

by customers is 
vital for sustained 

value creation.

We are advancing 
R&D and intel-

lectual property 
with the objective 

of maintaining 
our prominence 

in technology, the 
core of our value 

creation.

We aim to nurture 
and effectively 
deploy human 

resources while 
protecting the 

rights of employ-
ees and creating a 
workplace condu-

cive to work.

We make concerted efforts to reduce environmental load and 
to preserve the natural environment with the understanding that 

corporate activities are based on the use of natural capital.Human 
Capital

Natural Capital
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Social 
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Stance toward Human Resources and 
the CSR Medium-Term Plan
Based on our concept of enabling human resources to 
perform and grow, the Group supports employees’ inde-
pendent career development by providing a variety of oppor-
tunities for them to become prominent human resources.
 We are deploying measures to raise employee 
awareness and encourage employee growth on a daily 
basis from each of the three Group, Global, and Diversity 
perspectives to draw out the potential of each of the 
Group’s diverse employees working in Japan and around 
the world.
 Based on this understanding, the Group is advancing 
measures to hire and train employees for the entire group 
on a global scale under its CSR medium-term plan (fiscal 
2014-2016).

A Safe and Secure Workplace
At the core of safety, it is important that each and every 
employee has the ability to identify dangerous situations 
and take appropriate steps to protect themselves and fel-
low employees. At the same time, constructing a work 
environment in which employees can work with safety 
and security is our responsibility as a company and one of 
the most important priorities for management. The Group 
is implementing total safety activities (i.e. zero occupa-
tional injuries, zero equipment-related accidents, zero 
commuting-related accidents, and zero extended sick 
leave) based on five themes*.
 As one such activity, we develop human resources 

Human Resources Strategy (Human Capital)

The Sekisui Chemical Group works to develop its human resources and apply the skills of its employees 
to maximum effect. At the same time, every effort is made to protect the rights of all staff and to pro-
vide a comfortable and rewarding workplace environment. Through these means, the Group is actively 
endeavoring to enhance its corporate value.

who put business activities into practice with a high 
awareness of safety and who can demonstrate this to 
their subordinates. In fiscal 2015, we planned and imple-
mented an educational program with the aim of foster-
ing a sense of ownership among supervisors, managers, 
and assistant managers, and providing them with the 
skills to revitalize business. As a disaster should focus 
particularly on prevention, we implemented emergency 
response training in the core processes for the following 
scenarios: getting caught or entangled at a production 
facility, tumbling or falling down at a worksite, and a fire 
or explosion in the chemical process. We also promoted 
rigorous compliance with scaffolding work rules at con-
struction sites.
 To prevent fires and explosions that, once they occur, 
have a major impact on the surrounding environment and 
on business continuity, in addition to the safety audit per-
formed thus far, we began an Emergency Audit to which 
we invite outside disaster experts. We verify the stor-
age of hazardous materials and handling status and the 
recovery system at the time of disaster including natural 
disaster, thereby detecting the risk of natural disaster at 
an early stage and making improvements.
 At the Group, we conduct training to fortify the deci-
sion-making abilities of all our employees in emergency 
situations. More specifically, emergency crews are given 
scenarios where equipment designed to prevent danger 
fails and challenges trainees to ask questions to solve the 
problem on the spot. This training has been applied on 
various occasions including to handle problems, and in 

evacuation and emergency drills. In fiscal 2015, a total 
of 681 people participated in that was held a total of 91 
times at six business sites including Sekisui Board Co., 
Ltd., Okayama Sekisui Co., Ltd., and the Musashi Plant. 
* Five themes: Intrinsic safety of equipment, management using OHSMS, safety 

education of employees, risk prevention through risk detection activities and other 
initiatives, and auditing of health, safety, and accident prevention.

Diversity Management
The Group promotes diversity (advocating the employ-
ment of diverse people including women, young people, 
non-Japanese, veterans and challenged persons) and 
work-life balance (allowing various work styles). We 
believe these traits are key to achieving our aim of sus-
tainable development and increasing competitiveness by 
nurturing personnel and organizations able to address the 
diverse needs of our customers and stakeholders in the 
global marketplace, in addition to helping people grow 
and realize their full potential.
 The Group started diversity management in fis-
cal 2015 and established a new Diversity Management 
Policy. The Group also held a study meeting for about 200 
management-level employees of the domestic Sekisui 
Chemical Group and another study meeting for nearly 
1,900 managers of groups and sections.
 Among a host of diversity management initiatives, 
we are paying particular attention to efforts aimed at 
helping women excel at their jobs. The Group continues 
a variety of efforts to enable women employees to con-
tinue to work vigorously. As a result, we have achieved a 
substantial improvement in the ratio of women employ-
ees and retention rates and the number of women in 
management positions has increased. In fiscal 2015, we 
sought to become an organization where women can 
truly thrive throughout the entire Group and established 
specific numerical targets for the ratio of women employ-
ees including mid-career employment, and women in 
management positions.
 We also implemented educational programs for 
female assistant managers and their managers. Women 

Human Resources Strategy
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employee participants developed awareness about man-
agement positions and learned skills, shared growth chal-
lenges and experiences with each other, and deepened 
their understanding by sharing ideas. The managers of 
the women employee participants learned new methods 
to effectively develop woman managers.
 In helping women staff excel at their jobs, we are 
pushing forward support measures that target our 
younger employees. Pre-assignment training of new 
women staff, provided for staff responsible for training 
and support of new women employees, and manage-
ment training for women subordinates provided for their 
superiors, are intended as a means of raising the reten-
tion rate of young women employees and helping them to 
thrive in the workplace. A total of 526 people has under-
gone these training programs. The management training 
for women subordinates had participants perform role 
playing to bring home the importance of having managers 
provide guidance to young women employees.
 After the seminars ended, the participants applied the 
takeaways they learned to their actual work, and reported 
to the training center any issues or ideas that came up 
during their implementation. With this feedback, we con-
tinue to provide effective training.

Improving Group Human Resource Capabilities
The Group has developed a consistent training system 
covering all stages from new hires to management posi-
tions, in order to systematically train business leaders to 
power the Group into the future. Based on the concept 
that the foundations of growth are the experience gained 
through everyday business activities and learning from 
such experience, we have developed a training system 
that links these two elements together. Through this 
system we will enhance each individual’s mastery of the 
skills required of business leaders, by running through the 
cycle of growth through experience.
 In addition to the training of business leaders, we 
will at the same time nurture the human resources nec-
essary to support the frontline and to enhance frontline 

capabilities. The human resources who will support the 
foundations of management in practical terms in the 
workplace must undergo self-growth as highly capable 
practitioners by accumulating experience over the long 
term and acquiring highly specialized knowledge and 
skills. Based on this concept, the Group hires human 
resources who will support the workplace as full-time, 
permanent employees, creates an environment in which 
they can demonstrate their abilities with peace of mind 
over the long term, and deploys the Meister System to 
strengthen their abilities in the workplace.

Personnel who can Succeed on the Global Stage
In fiscal 2015, 25.8% of consolidated sales were gener-
ated overseas, and this ratio has been increasing every 
year. We have over 90 production and marketing sites in 
approximately 27 countries. We believe that all the busi-
nesses of the Group depend on each and every employee 
working around the world growing through their work and 
providing excellent products and services in tune with 
local needs.
 Based on this belief, we train our employees so that 
each and every one of them has the skills to succeed in 
their jobs. We have training and personnel systems in 
place tailored to local conditions in North America/Mexico, 
Europe, China, and the ASEAN Region.
 In Japan, the Group has established the Global Trainee 
Program to enable participants to build up real-world 
experience overseas. This program sends applicants with 
sufficient levels of experience in specific positions such 
as sales, accounting, and development to actual posi-
tions at overseas affiliates. In fiscal 2015, four employees 
enlisted in this program and were newly assigned over-
seas. In the future, we will strive to enhance these sys-
tems so that greater numbers of employees can build up 
work experience around the world.
 Meanwhile, with the rapid expansion of business 
globalization, overseas human resource development 
has become an urgent task. Therefore, in fiscal 2015, we 
implemented the Global Saijuku School to develop the 

next generation of management personnel who will play 
an active role in global markets. Twelve executives from 
Group companies in North America/Mexico, Europe, Asia, 
and Japan, as well as from our laboratories, took part in a 
program to enhance the management skills required for 
personnel to play an active role on the global stage by 
teaching them about Sekisui’s values while reinforcing 
management and business creation capabilities.

Industrial Relations
The Group strives to understand the positions of labor 
unions and respects the opinions of employees. Through 
close communications, we believe good relations 
between labor and management are essential for shar-
ing the objective of advancing the company. In Japan, as 
of July 1, 2016, there were 4,430 employees in the All-
Sekisui Chemical Labor Union Federation.

Human Resources Strategy
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Sekisui Chemical’s Approach to R&D and 
its R&D System
The Group, following its belief that a solid core of essen-
tial technologies is crucial to realizing the Group Vision 
for the medium and long term and to creating value on 
a sustained basis, has set R&D focused on “reinforcing 
and nurturing essential technologies” as a top priority in 
the SHINKA!-Advance 2016, its three-year medium-term 
management plan that began in fiscal 2014.
 The Group has also set “co-creation for new busi-
nesses” as a top priority for R&D in the belief that collabora-
tion with companies inside and outside the Group to develop 
new markets and fields in its business domains is also key 
to developing future business for the Group. The Group is 
actively looking to address these two priority issues.
 To reinforce and nurture essential technologies, 
management has designated six essential technolo-
gies and 23 technological platforms with direct links to 
specific solutions in the Group’s two business domains: 
The Creation of Housing and Social Infrastructure and 
Chemical Solutions. While further developing and honing 

Research & Development/
Intellectual Property Strategy
(Intellectual Capital)
The Sekisui Chemical Group recognizes that maintaining a prominence in technology is the bedrock 
for creating value. This is particularly the case in the housing/social infrastructure and chemical solu-
tions fields, where the Group’s technology platform provides the underlying strength of its competitive 
advantage. In order to maintain this prominence in technology, the Group is committed to consistently 
strengthen its human resources and organizational structure in both the research and development a 
well as intellectual property fields.

R&D Strategy
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Six Essential Technology Groups

combining housing and energy concepts to generate new 
ideas and products without focusing on a particular divi-
sional company. The project also integrates new themes 
in areas outside the standard growth directions of existing 
businesses and includes actively utilizing sources from 
outside the company, such as alliances, M&A, and indus-
try-academia collaborations, to accelerate co-creation.
 The Group operates four primary R&D centers within 
the Housing Company, the UIEP Company, the HPP 
Company, and the Corporate headquarters. In addition, 
Sekisui Medical Co., Ltd., and other key affiliated compa-
nies maintain independent R&D divisions and facilities.
 The three divisional companies’ R&D activities primar-
ily focus on researching themes closely related to product 

Research & Development/Intellectual Property Strategy

Creation of Housing and Social Infrastructure

Dwelling space • Pursuit of industrialized housing advantages
• Environment, comfort, safety

Stock management • Enrichment of housing and social infrastructure
• Maintenance, renewal, and renovation

Energy • Use of renewable energy
• Hardware + control technology

Chemical Solutions

Material • Deepening of essential plastic technology
• New material design and evaluation technology

Processing • Increased process efficiency and increased precision
• Functionalization by compounding and multilayer

Nature and life • Reagent materials and systems for clinical laboratory
• Creation of microorganisms utilizing chemicals

each technological platform, we will also look to combine 
platforms to develop products and services to spearhead 
advances into new markets and business domains.
 Co-creation for new businesses will include cross-
over projects for divisional companies for the specific 
purpose of developing new businesses. The “Advanced 
Community Development” R&D project, for example, is 
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development, production engineering, and management 
technologies, and the Corporate R&D works as an indepen-
dent research unit researching key themes for medium- and 
long-term time frames, themes that will become links for 
divisional company collaboration, and new business domain 
themes for the Group. One successful research theme into 
a new domain is the Group’s work on high-capacity film-
type lithium-ion batteries. In order to accelerate the pace of 
commercialization, and to nurture the Group’s work in high-
capacity film-type lithium-ion batteries into a Core business, 
work in this area has been structured into an independent 
unit reporting directly to the president.
 Product development is the key to a manufacturer’s 
competitiveness. We established the Manufacturing 
Development Innovation Center at the Corporate R&D 
Center in 2006 to enhance our product development capa-
bilities. In fiscal 2009, the manufacturing development 
departments were shifted from the Corporate R&D Center 
to the new Total Manufacturing Innovation Center compris-
ing the Safety Group, the Quality Management Group, the 
Manufacturing Development Innovation Center, and the 
Purchasing Group and are operating under the guiding prin-
ciple of “No quality without safety. No productivity without 
safety and quality.” The system is structured for all depart-
ments, including the Purchasing Group, to support innova-
tion in manufacturing. In fiscal 2013, the Company revised 
its human resource development system for manufacturing 
production and commenced full operation of the expanded 
factory management training program for plant managers.

R&D Human Resources and Benefits
The Group presents Great Invention Awards to acknowl-
edge researchers and engineers that have created highly 
unique and innovative inventions with the potential to 
become profitable technologies and products. These 
awards and the accompanying monetary endowment are 
one way the Group demonstrates its recognition of and 
appreciation for its talented researchers and engineers. 
In fiscal 2015, several innovations were recognized and 
the inventors presented with awards and benefits. This 
included the Smart Power Station home roof.
 The Group has also established a specialist position 
system to recognize and reward researchers and engineers 
with highly specialized skills. The system selects exceptional 

individuals who have been recognized as possessing highly 
advanced skills and appoints them to uniquely defined 
specialist positions. The system promotes ongoing devel-
opment and aims to cultivate outstanding researchers and 
engineers recognized both inside and outside the Company. 
As of July 2015, 14 people held specialist positions.
 The Group introduced the Meister position in fiscal 
2009 to recognize individuals that exemplify the range 
of manufacturing skills and technical objectives of the 
Group. The position is intended to promote the Group 
tradition of high skill and craftsmanship and increase the 
motivation of each and every technician. As of July 2015, 
seven people held Meister positions. Cultivating and 
encouraging the Group’s talented manufacturing techni-
cians by acknowledging their highly refined skills inspires 
motivation and will further elevate the Group’s high level 
of manufacturing expertise.

Strengthening Manufacturing 
Development Capabilities
The Group is working to promote R&D that helps to cre-
ate new products. At the same time, the Group is plac-
ing equal emphasis on strengthening its manufacturing 
development capabilities in a bid to reinforce the competi-
tive advantage of its existing products.
 The SHINKA!-Advance 2016 medium-term manage-
ment plan sets a policy for promoting manufacturing 
development activities to “contribute to management 
by strengthening our production engineering and unique 
technologies” by improving existing processes and inno-
vating new processes to make the production process 
more efficient. The plan also includes further advancing 
existing measures to reinforce our core strengths and 
workforce. The Company took the further step in fiscal 
2015 to fortify its ability to provide quality assurance from 
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the customer’s perspective by combining the Customer 
Satisfaction Department and Quality Management Group 
into a single CS & Quality Management Group entity. 
Through its VOICE publication, the Group is also distrib-
uting the comments received from customer throughout 
the Group. Through these and other means, every effort 
is being made to enhance the quality of the Group’s 
human resources, products, and systems.
 This organizational approach will enable the Group 
to engage its prominent technologies and quality in the 
continuous development of new frontiers in the domains 
of “Creation of Housing and Social Infrastructure” and 
“Chemical Solutions” for the betterment of the environ-
ment and the people of the world.

Intel lectual Property 
Strategy

Safety Group CS & Quality
Management Group

Manufacturing Development
Innovation Center Purchasing Group

Headquarters

Housing Company High Performance Plastics Company

(including intellectual property)
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Research & Development Institute
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Technology & CS Promotion DepartmentInternational Business Promotion Department

R&D and Intellectual Property Management System

Total Manufacturing Management Center

R&D Center

contribute to our management and business strategies. The 
plan focuses on three directives.

1.  Fortify the ability to respond to intellectual property risk 
from domestic and foreign litigation and from the accel-
erated technical advances in China and South Korea.

2.  Conduct broad-ranging analysis of intellectual property 
information to contribute to the creation and develop-
ment of new businesses.

3.  Create highly exclusive intellectual property and amass 
a stock of intellectual property with a high degree of 
contribution to our businesses.

Framework for Promoting Our Intellectual 
Property Strategy and Major Activities
The Group advances a uniform intellectual property strat-
egy through intellectual property divisions at the head-
quarters and each divisional company that covers all 
levels of operation from the planning of basic strategy to 

the acquisition, management, and utilization of patents.
 Each divisional company’s intellectual property and R&D 
division holds periodic Development and Intellectual Property 
Strategy Committee meetings to review the orientation and 
direction of its intellectual property strategies. The Intellectual 
Property Group at the headquarters supports each divisional 
company from a Companywide business strategy perspec-
tive to optimize the intellectual property portfolio.
 The Group also proactively cooperates and seeks 
the advice of patent agents, lawyers, and other external 
experts regarding the acquisition, management, and utili-
zation of intellectual property to ensure each step is con-
ducted in an appropriate manner. The Group is actively 
working with specialists in both Japan and overseas with 
the aim of further expanding the development of its global 
business. Along with this effort, we are hiring and train-
ing local personnel to serve as intellectual property staff 
promoting intellectual property activities at our operating 
sites around the world.

Intellectual Property Strategy Objectives 
and Fundamental Policy
The intellectual property cultivated from our R&D activi-
ties is an important management resource that underpins 
the Group’s growth and revenue and contributes to opti-
mizing corporate value. An intellectual property strategy is 
vital to maximizing the Group’s technological prominence.
 In the Principles on Intellectual Property formulated in 
March 2005, the Group clearly stated that the objectives 
of its intellectual property management are to contribute 
to business growth and to increase corporate value by 
encouraging the creation, protection, and utilization of 
intellectual property, which is to be achieved by respect-
ing the Group’s proprietary intellectual property and that 
of others and by clearly laying out an approach toward 
intellectual property management. This management 
mandate is further reinforced by our fundamental policy 
of ensuring business competitiveness by acquiring highly 
beneficial patents.
 Sekisui Chemical adopted a new Group-wide Intellectual 
Property Management Medium-term Plan in March 2014 
to foster activities related to the intellectual properties that 

Research & Development/Intellectual Property Strategy
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CS & Quality Management
Pursuing a level of quality that is 
always specified by customers
Since 1999, the Group has practiced customer satisfac-
tion (CS) management. In 2004, we began CS & Quality 
Management to consistently deliver value to our custom-
ers so that they will always choose our products and 
services, by focusing on quality innovations in all of our 
businesses. Based on the motto “we consider customer 
feedback as the beginning of our manufacturing,” we 
improve the Attractive Qualities and Basic Qualities pro-
vided to customers by enhancing the Quality of People, 
Quality of Products, and Quality of Systems. The Group is 
working together to pursue the quality that will always be 
specified by customers.
 The Group has identified two themes for CS & 
Quality Management. One of these is external failure 
costs*1 and the other is the number of major quality 
issues*2. Under the CSR Medium-Term Plan (FY2014-
2016), we are targeting zero major quality issues and a 
50% reduction in external failure costs (compared with 
fiscal 2013) by fiscal 2016.
 In fiscal 2015, the second year of the Medium-Term 
Plan, we achieved zero major quality issues. External 
failure costs were roughly the same level as in fiscal 

Social Capital
The Sekisui Chemical Group recognizes the importance of providing products and services that consis-
tently satisfy and appeal to customers. Only in this way, can the Group truly strengthen ties with society 
and stakeholders. Accordingly, every effort is made to enhance the quality of our human resources, 
products, and systems while working the quality that will always be specified by customers. At the 
same time, we adhere strictly to a policy of CSR procurement when seeking to purchase raw materi-
als. We also refrain from the use of conflict minerals associated with inhumane acts. Cognizant that 
the Company is a member of society, we engage vigorously in environmental and social contribution 
activities in each of the three environment, next generation, and local community fields.

2014. To maintain zero major quality issues, we aim to 
improve basic quality by ensuring thorough adherence to 
the Development Guidelines and Everyday Management 
Guidelines throughout the entire Group.
 We aim to further cut external failure costs by con-
tinuing to enhance Group-wide quality assurance systems 
and to deploy activities to reduce quality-related risks.

*1  External failure costs: Costs arising from responding to product-related complaints.
*2  Major quality issues: Problems related to product and service quality that could 

cause significant damage to customers, society, or the Group if not thoroughly 
resolved on an urgent basis.

Materials Procurement
The Group procures materials based on the five funda-
mental concepts of openness; fairness and equity; legal 
compliance; mutual trust; and consideration for the envi-
ronment. We will strengthen our harmonious and mutu-
ally beneficial partnership with our business partners 
through fair transactions. Also, the Group is engaging 
in the promotion of CSR procurement. In other words, 
activities that are conducted by collaborating with busi-
ness partners.
 Moreover, in an effort to secure the highest qual-
ity from its business partners, suppliers are requested 
to take into consideration the environment as well as 

compliance with all laws, regulations and societal norms, 
and ensure health and safety in their own companies.

Addressing the Issue of Conflict Minerals
Guided by the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act in the 
United States, the Group is committed to eradicating 
the use of conflict minerals including gold (Au), tantalum 
(Ta), tungsten (W), and tin (Sn) associated with inhumane 
acts committed by armed groups on the ground in the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo or any of its neighbor-
ing countries. If any concerns that conflict minerals are 
being used come to light during commercial distribution 
inspections, robust steps will be taken to promote respon-
sible procurement and to implement the necessary reme-
dial measures in collaboration with business partners.
 Companies that are registered with the US Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) fall within the scope 
of the Dodd-Frank Act. Sekisui Chemical is not an SEC 
registered company and accordingly is not obligated to 
disclose details of conflict mineral use. The Company is, 
however, implementing surveys and inspections to ascer-
tain the status of conflict mineral use.

Social Contributions
As a company in tune with local communities
The Group contributes to the environment and society pri-
marily through activities in the areas of the environment, 
the next generation, and local communities. We position 
these activities as a hallmark of our initiatives as a corpo-
rate citizen in tune with the needs of society. We support 
the activities of Group employees to give back to society.

Social Capital
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Long-Term Environmental Management Vision
Sekisui Environment Sustainability Vision 2030
The Group is aware that its business activities depend 
on resources (natural capital). Each and every executive 
and employee is working to evolve into a pool of talented 
personnel with excellent environmental activity promo-
tional skills and will promote environmental management 
based on contributions in three areas in order to “give 
back more to the Earth than is taken” in 2030. In specific 
terms, energies will be channeled toward expanding and 
creating markets for Environment-Contributing Products, 
reducing environmental impact, and conserving the natu-
ral environment.
 In addition, the Group is generating prominent value 
toward the realization of “the Earth with maintained bio-
diversity” by contributing to the return of natural capital.
 We are undertaking initiatives aimed at resiliently and 
sustainably solving climate change and energy issues raised 
as Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) by the UN.

Integrated Index Trial Calculations
Sekisui Environment Sustainability Index
The Group has been using the Sekisui Environment 
Sustainability Index since fiscal 2014 as a single indicator 
of the level of environmental impact by its corporate activi-
ties (i.e. use of natural capital) and contributions back to the 
environment (i.e. return of natural capital).

 Based on fiscal 2015 performance, the Sekisui 
Environment Sustainability Index was calculated as fol-
lows. With environmental impact equal to 100 represent-
ing the use of natural capital, the return of natural capital 
as contributions back to the environment came to 76.4 
(+11.9% compared with fiscal 2014).

Environmental Medium-Term Plan
The Sekisui Environment Sustainability Plan: 
Take-Off (FY2014-2016)
The Group has formulated the new environmental 
medium-term plan Sekisui Environment Sustainability 
Plan: Take-Off (FY2014-2016) based on back-casting from 
the Sekisui Environment Sustainability Vision 2030. The 
Group has identified specific targets under the plan and is 
engaging in a wide range of activities.

Environment Management System
The CSR Committee, headed by the President, and the 
Environmental Subcommittee of the Group meet twice 
a year to decide on environmental policies and key initia-
tives for the entire Group. Matters decided by these two 
bodies are then transformed into specific action plans 
in meetings of environmental managers from corporate 
headquarters and each divisional company. Each busi-
ness site manages its environmental activities through an 
environment management system based on ISO 14001.
 As of March 31, 2016, 54 business sites in Japan and 
32 overseas have been ISO 14001 certified. The number 
of employees working at these business sites repre-
sented 50% of the total for the Group.

Reduction in Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Group strives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions at 
each stage, from the purchase of raw materials through 
development, production, shipping, and use. We ascer-
tain emissions throughout the entire supply chain, includ-
ing not just our own business sites, but also raw material 
suppliers and the use of our products sold.
 Aiming to keep the overall volume of greenhouse gas 
emitted during manufacturing pegged to the fiscal 2013 
level, we pay particular attention to reducing by 1% every 
year the amount of energy consumed per unit of output 
and focus on energy conservation activities especially 
at our overseas business sites, which have increased in 
recent years.
 As a result, we reduced total emissions by 4.5% in 
fiscal 2015. Looking ahead, we will continue reducing 
greenhouse gases at every stage of our business activi-
ties with the aim of reaching COP 21 objectives.

Reduction of Waste
The Group sets the ambitious target of reducing the 
amount of waste generated per unit of output by 4% 
every year compared with the fiscal 2013 level. Changing 
our perspective on reducing waste by improving produc-
tion efficiency, we are taking on the challenge of shifting 

* Natural capital: A term that refers to the Earth’s various resources, such as soil, air, water, minerals, flora, and fauna, that human beings are incapable of creating themselves.

Sekisui Environment Sustainability Index
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Environmental Strategy

Environmental Strategy (Natural Capital)
The Sekisui Chemical Group aims for a planet in which the air, water, and land provide a healthy living 
environment for its inhabitants and fosters robust biodiversity. Our daily lives and economic activities 
have been sustained by the natural capital* provided by our planet. The Group’s business activities use 
the resources (natural capital) of our planet, such as petroleum and timber, while also building plants 
and office buildings on the land. Being aware of this, we engage in a wide range of activities aimed at 
paying back the natural capital that we use.
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our emphasis from simply selling waste materials as valu-
able materials to generating additional value using resin 
processing technologies developed to date.
 The Group is promoting zero emissions at overseas 
production sites. While domestic Group facilities have 
been certified under standards calling for zero direct land-
fill waste and no incineration without heat recovery in 
Japan, many sites overseas still bury or incinerate waste. 
Under these circumstances, five business sites beginning 
with our SPI Bloomsburg plant in America were certified 
in fiscal 2015.

Preservation of Water Resources
Water resources are a form of natural capital that is 
vital for maintaining sustainable business activities. 
Accordingly, we are not only reducing the amount of 
water extracted, but also identifying risks posed to bio-
diversity and business sustainability by water discharge. 
In fiscal 2015, we reduced water usage at our production 
sites by 5.8% compared with fiscal 2013 and conducted 
additional Whole Effluent Toxicity (WET) assessments 
regarding water discharge at four business sites. As for 
water risk surveys, we confirmed that no business sites 
require emergency measures after follow-up surveys 
were conducted mainly at overseas facilities.

Natural Environment Conservation
Employees across the Group’s global network of business 
sites are actively promoting measures aimed at conserv-
ing the natural environment. In particular, the Group holds 
the SEKISUI Environment Week annually during the week 

starting on August 1 as an opportunity for all employees 
to participate in environmental contribution activities.
 SEKISUI Environment Week was held for the third 
time in fiscal 2015, with 19,677 employees taking part. This 
event comprised a wide array of activities, such as local 
cleanup drives, energy conservation initiatives in offices, 
tree planting, and providing environmental education at 
elementary schools. In addition, the European Children’s 
Eco Summit 2015 held in Germany was an event that sym-
bolized the Group’s efforts. Executives led by the chairman 
and president along with roughly 80 employees and their 
families took part in tree planting and environmental train-
ing during SEKISUI Environment Week.

Environment-Contributing Products
Contributing to the environment through its products and 
businesses is an essential mission of the Group, which 
uses this planet’s natural resources. The Group returns 
natural capital to the Earth by creating and the expanding 
markets of its Environment-Contributing Products.
 Environment-Contributing Products are internally certi-
fied products that have demonstrated a high level of envi-
ronment contribution especially when used by customers.
 The Group endeavors to increase the consolidated 
sales ratio of Environment-Contributing Products as well 
as the number of newly certified products. In fiscal 2015, 
sales of houses installed with solar panels declined. As 
a result, sales of Environment-Contributing Products 
came in at ¥485.8 billion and the ratio of Environment-
Contributing Product sales to total sales declined to 
44.3%. Meanwhile, we identified approaches for area 

contributions that take into account the circumstances 
of each area with a particular focus on our overseas 
operations. The products that play a leading role in pro-
moting environmental contributions in various areas of 
the Group are registered, such as houses in Thailand. In 
fiscal 2015, 15 products were registered.

Note:  Please refer to the Data section of this report (P58-61) for quantitative infor-
mation concerning the environment.

Environmental Strategy
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Corporate Governance

Overview of the Corporate Governance System
(1) Organizational Structure and business execution system
As an organizational structure under the Companies Act, 
the Company has chosen to be a company with Audit & 
Supervisory Board.
 Under the Divisional Company System, the Company 
has adopted the Executive Officer System in order to 
clearly distinguish the business execution function from 
the decision-making function in management. Each divi-
sional company has an Executive Officers Committee, 
which serves as the company’s highest decision-making 
body. The Executive Officers Committee has been del-
egated substantial authority previously entrusted to the 
Board of Directors. Executive Officers are appointed by 
a resolution of the Board of Directors, and their term of 
office is one year.

(2) Board of Directors
The Board of Directors continually strives to strengthen 
its role as a body responsible for decision-making con-
cerning the Company’s fundamental policies and upper-
level management issues, and supervising the execution 
of business. The Board includes two Outside Directors to 
ensure transparency in management and fairness in busi-
ness decisions and operations.
The number of directors shall not exceed 15, and two 
or more of them shall be independent outside directors. 
The Company ensures diversity among board members 

Corporate Governance
The Sekisui Chemical Group sets forth as the basic policy for corporate governance the promotion 
of sustainable corporate growth and the increase of corporate value. To realize this, the Group will 
enhance the transparency/fairness of management, pursue prompt decision-making, and continue to 
fulfill the expectations of “customers,” “shareholders,” “employees,” “business partners,” and “local 
communities and the environment,” the five major categories of stakeholders that the Company values 
most, through the creation of values to the society.

and keeps the number of directors at an optimal level 
for appropriate decision-making that is commensurate 
with the business domain and size. The presidents of 
the divisional companies who are the top management 
of each business and senior corporate officers with sig-
nificant experience and strong expertise are appointed 
as inside directors. Together with the outside directors 
who have broad knowledge and Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members with strong experience, they effectively 
perform the roles and responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors, taking the balance with respect to diversity, 
optimal size, and capabilities, with Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member with strong expertise.

(3) Auditing System
The Company has established a Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member Board as a supervisory body to oversee 
the Board of Directors and business execution system. 
Together with the adoption of outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members, the system ensures wide-ranging view-
points and fairness. 
 A group-wide internal framework has been put in 
place to enable Audit & Supervisory Board Members to 
exercise without any obstacle its authorities by, among 
others, attending various important meetings, conducting 
an investigation into divisions concerned including affili-
ates, and examining the approval documents of impor-
tant projects. Sufficient information sharing and exchange 

of opinions take place among the members of Audit & 
Supervisory Board (including Outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members). Audit & Supervisory Board Members 
also hold a regular meeting with the representative direc-
tors, directors, and executive officers to exchange opin-
ions on, among others, the issues that the Company 
should resolve, the status of the improvement of the 
environment for audit by Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members, and important audit issues and to make neces-
sary requests to enhance mutual understanding.
 The Corporate Audit Department has been established 
under the direct control of the President, and conducts inter-
nal audits on the operations of the entire Group. Internal 
audit field work is conducted in accordance with the internal 
audit regulations and based on the audit policy and the audit 
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plan for the year. The findings are reported to the President, 
directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Members and divisions 
concerned. The Corporate Audit Department receives action 
plans for improvement from the audited parties or conducts 
follow-up audits where necessary, through which it stream-
lines and improves the internal control system. 
 The Company’s accounting auditor is Ernst & Young 
ShinNihon LLC, and certified public accountants who 
execute the accounting audit work are Mikio Konishi, 
Yoshio Ogawa and Hiroshi Matsuura; each certified public 
accountant is replaced in a timely manner in accordance 
with the replacement plan formulated with Ernst & Young 
ShinNihon LLC.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Advisory Committee
The Company has established an optional advisory com-
mittee on nominations and remuneration policies as a 
complementary function to the Board of Directors, and 
for the purpose of enhancing fairness and transparency.
 The Nomination and Remuneration Advisory Committee 
deliberates and makes recommendations to the Board of 
Directors on important management issues as necessary, 
in addition to the nomination of senior executives includ-
ing Representative Directors and other directors, etc. and 
adequacy of the system and the level of remuneration for 
the directors. The Committee consists of five members, the 
majority of which must be independent outside directors 
and the chairperson of which must be elected from among 
the independent outside directors.

Compliance
Chaired by the president, the CSR Committee deliber-
ates on the Fundamental Compliance Policies and other 
important matters. As an executive organization, the CSR 
Committee also manages a Compliance Sub-committee 
with the Legal Department serving as the secretariat. 
In addition to having Group company and Headquarters 
executive officers as well as the head of the Corporate 
Audit Department join its members, the Compliance Sub-
committee reports on the results of compliance initiatives 

and on matters discussed at the Compliance Advisory 
Board, and discusses future initiative policy.
 In fiscal 2015, training and education activities with 
regard to accounting compliance were strengthened by 
the implementation of accounting compliance training for 
the full-time directors and full-time Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members at Group companies. Furthermore, inter-
nal reporting rules were revised and these made known 
to all Group directors and employees: the filing of a report 
was made mandatory for cases in which fraudulent or 
other behavior was not being corrected; the disadvanta-
geous treatment for reasons that a person had reported 
an issue prohibited; and the revised rules added to mat-
ters subject to reporting at major suppliers. In October 
2015, which was deemed Compliance Reinforcement 

Month, the Company sent out messages from senior 
management and implemented e-learning and educa-
tional programs (open seminars).
 In 2002, the Group developed the S.C.A.N. (Sekisui 
Compliance Assist Network) intra-company whistle-blowing 
system and since then has made it available for use by all 
Group employees.

Reinforcement of the Risk Management Structure
Sekisui Chemical maintains a companywide risk manage-
ment structure for integrated management of measures 
to prevent risk events from occurring (risk management) 
and to respond when risk events occur (crisis manage-
ment). The Risk Management Group of the Human 
Resources Department maintains and refines the risk 

Corporate Governance
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management structure and disseminates information to 
all directors, executive officers, and employees of the 
Company and Group companies.
 Based on the Sekisui Chemical Group Risk Management 
Guidelines, 156 task forces are working (fiscal 2016) to 
reduce and eliminate risk by analyzing and assessing con-
ditions and implementing risk management measures fol-
lowed by periodic reviews and implementation of the PDCA 
cycle of risk management for ongoing improvement. The 
Risk Management Group addresses risk expediently and 
systematically, reports to the CSR Committee, and consid-
ers measures for implementation throughout the Company.
 Crisis management activities are carried out fol-
lowing the Sekisui Chemical Group Crisis Management 
Guidelines. Risk management officers of each depart-
ment regularly hold crisis management liaison meetings 
to research incidents and reinforce practices. In addition, 
the Company works to ensure that the emergency sys-
tems at 800 domestic business sites are sufficient. The 
Company’s overseas crisis management activities are 
overseen by the Global Crisis Management Office and 
Regional Crisis Management Responsibility in each of 
the Company’s eight regions in line with the Global Crisis 
Management Guidelines.

Information Disclosure
In order to deepen mutual trust with all of our sharehold-
ers, we believe it is important not only to actively disclose 
information in a timely and appropriate manner, but also 
to enhance two-way communications with our sharehold-
ers. To steadily put this belief into practice throughout 
the Group, we established the “Principle of Corporate 
Information Disclosure” and beefed up our internal infor-
mation disclosure framework. For instance, we have set 
up the “Corporate Information Disclosure Regulations” 
which specify the content and system of disclosure.
In the Group, the Investor Relations Group within the 
Business Strategy Department is working hard to 
strengthen two-way communications with our share-
holders and investors, not only by disclosing financial 

statements in a timely and appropriate manner but also 
by actively reflecting feedback from our shareholders and 
investors in our management. For example, we hold quar-
terly briefings on financial results where our management 
team explains these figures. Also, we pay heed to the 
voice of capital markets by holding one-on-one meetings 
with analysts and investors.
 To ensure information is provided in a fair manner, 
the Group posts its financial statements and results brief-
ings on the Company website in Japanese and English 
simultaneously and additionally provides an audio record-
ing of briefings and a transcript of the question and 
answer session.

Dialog with Stakeholders
We are working to reflect appropriately in our business 
the evaluations and comments we receive through dia-
logue with stakeholders. 
 We are doing so through efforts including Customer 
And Top (CAT) Meeting, at which top management in hous-
ing sales companies meet customers to receive feedback 
directly (3,613 persons took part in fiscal 2015), Dialogue 
with Top Management where the president and top man-
agement talk directly with employees, the Employee CS 
& Quality Assessment, by which employees are surveyed 
on their awareness of CS & Quality and the results fed 
back, the Heim Mutual Prosperity Group and other ven-
ues of communication with suppliers, and through con-
tact with investors and research organizations.
 The Group continues to communicate directly with 
SRI rating agencies in Europe and other regions. We 
believe it is important to take the time to explain to each 
agency our wide-ranging businesses and CSR initiatives 
in order to convey a sufficient and accurate understanding 
of our operations.
 In fiscal 2015, we talked directly with four SRI rating 
agencies in Japan and abroad.

Response to the Corporate Governance Code
The Company has established and disclosed the SEKISUI 
Corporate Governance Principles for the purpose of fur-
ther evolving the initiatives of the Group to improve its 
corporate governance and communicating our corporate 
governance approach and initiatives to our stakeholders. 
 In addition to the above Principles, the status of the 
Company’s initiatives and its approach with respect to all 
73 items of the Corporate Governance Code consisting 
of the General Principles, Principles and Supplementary 
Principles have been summarized and disclosed in 
the form of the Initiatives to Each of Principles of the 
Corporate Governance Code, including the items for 
which the implementation method is currently being con-
sidered. Please refer to the following. 

Corporate Governance

www.sekisuichemical.com/about/governance/index.html
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Directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Executive Officers

Apr. 1980: Joined the Company

Apr. 2008: Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager of 
Administrative Management & Control Department of High 
Performance Plastics Company

Jan. 2010: Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager of CSR 
Department

Jun. 2010: Director of the Company, Executive Officer of the Company, 
in Charge of Corporate Communication Department, General 
Manager of External Affairs Department and CSR Department

Apr. 2011: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of 
the Company, in Charge of Corporate Communication 
Department, General Manager of External Affairs 
Department and CSR Department 

Apr. 2012: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company, in Charge of Legal Department, General Manager of 
CSR Department and Corporate Communication Department

Apr. 2013: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of 
the Company, General Manager of CSR Department and 
Corporate Communication Department

Mar. 2014: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company, Responsible for Corporate Finance Accounting 
Department, Head of Business Planning Department

Apr. 2014: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive Officer of 
the Company, Responsible for Corporate Finance Accounting 
Department, Head of Business Planning Department

Mar. 2015: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive Officer of 
the Company, Responsible for Corporate Finance Accounting 
Department, Head of Business Planning Department, Head of 
CSR Department, Head of Corporate Communication Department

Apr. 2015: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company, President of Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products Company [incumbent]

Apr. 1980: Joined the Company

Apr. 2009: Executive Officer of the Company, Head of R&D Center

Apr. 2011: Managing Executive Officer of the Company, Head of R&D 
Center

Jun. 2011: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company, Head of R&D Center

Apr. 2014: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company, Head of R&D Center

Apr. 2016: Director of the Company Senior Managing Executive Officer 
of the Company Head of R&D Center and Head of LB 
Project [incumbent]

Apr. 1971: Joined the Company

Jun. 2003: Director of the Company, General Manager of Corporate 
Finance & Accounting and Planning Department

Apr. 2005: Managing Director of the Company*, General Manager of 
Corporate Finance & Accounting and Planning Department

Oct. 2007: Managing Director of the Company*, in Charge of Corporate 
Communication Department, General Manager of Corporate 
Finance & Accounting and Planning Department

Apr. 2008: Managing Director of the Company*, Senior Managing 
Executive Officer & CFO of the Company, in Charge of 
Corporate Communication Department, General Manager of 
Corporate Finance & Accounting and Planning Department 

Jun. 2008: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer & CFO of the Company, in Charge of Corporate 
Communication Department, General Manager of 
Corporate Finance & Accounting and Planning Department

Oct. 2008: Vice President & Director of the Company, Senior Managing 
Executive Officer & CFO of the Company, in Charge of 
Corporate Communication Department and Corporate 
Finance & Accounting and Planning Department

Mar. 2009: President and Representative Director, Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company

Mar. 2015: Chairman of the Board and Representative Director of the 
Company [incumbent]

Apr. 1976: Joined the Company

Jun. 2005: Director of the Company, President of Nagoya Sekisui Heim 
Co., Ltd.

Oct. 2005: Director of the Company, Head of President’s Office of 
Housing Company

Apr. 2006: Director of the Company, General Manager of Planning & 
Control Department of Housing Company

Apr. 2007: Director of the Company, General Manager of Housing 
Division and Planning & Control Department of Housing 
Company

Jul. 2007: Director of the Company, in Charge of Sales Department, 
General Manager of Housing Division of Housing Company

Feb. 2008: Director of the Company, President of Housing Company, 
in Charge of Sales Department, General Manager of 
Housing Division

Apr. 2008: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company, President of Housing Company

Apr. 2009: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company, President of Housing Company

Mar. 2014: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company, Head of CSR Department, Head of 
Corporate Communication Department

Mar. 2015: President and Representative Director, Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company [incumbent]

* The title of managing director of the Company was in use until the April 2008 
introduction of the Executive Officer System.

Apr. 1978: Joined the Company

Apr. 2008: Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager 
of Living Environment Division and Head of Diversified 
Business Group of Housing Company

Jul. 2010: Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager of 
Living Environment Division of Housing Company

Jan. 2013: Executive Officer of the Company, Responsible for Public 
Relations & External Relations Department, General 
Manager of Living Environment Division and Head of 
President Office of Housing Company

Apr. 2013: Managing Executive Officer of the Company, Responsible 
for Public Relations & External Relations Department, Head 
of Sales Management Division and Head of President 
Office of Housing Company

Jan. 2014: Managing Executive Officer of the Company, Responsible 
for Public Relations & External Relations Department and 
Head of President Office of Housing Company

Mar. 2014: Managing Executive Officer of the Company, President of 
Housing Company 

Jun. 2014: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company, President of Housing Company

Apr. 2015: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive Officer 
of the Company, President of Housing Company [incumbent]

Hajime
Kubo
Director

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

Satoshi 
Uenoyama
Director 

Teiji 
Koge
President and 
Representative 
Director

Chief
 Executive Officer

Shunichi 
Sekiguchi
Director

Naofumi 
Negishi
Chairman of 
the Board and 
Representative 
Director

He has mainly been engaged in finance and accounting affairs. He formerly 
assumed office as President and Representative Director for six years from 
2009 to 2015. Since 2015 when he was appointed as Chairman of the Board and 
Representative Director, he has been engaged in external affairs as the Chairman 
of the Board and representative of the Sekisui Chemical Group. He has been 
elected as a Director as the Company has judged that he would be able to fur-
ther fortify the Board’s functions of decision-making and supervision based on his 
abundant business experience and past achievements in the Company.

Reasons for Election of the Director

He has been engaged in the housing business for many years. He formerly assumed 
office as Head of the CSR Department and Head of the Corporate Communication 
Department and has served as President and Representative Director since 2015. 
He has been elected as a Director in the position of Chief Executive Officer as the 
Company has judged that he would be able to contribute to enhance the corpo-
rate value of the Sekisui Chemical Group with his abundant business experience 
acquired until today and expertise in the Company’s management.

Reasons for Election of the Director

He has mainly been engaged in the high performance plastics business. He pre-
viously assumed office as Director in charge of the Corporate Communication 
Department, Legal Department and Corporate Finance Accounting Department. 
He currently serves as President of Urban Infrastructure & Environmental 
Products Company. He has been elected as a Director as he has abundant 
business experience and expertise regarding business management in general.

Reasons for Election of the Director

He has been engaged in the R&D business of the Company for many years. 
Since 2009 when he was appointed as Head of the R&D Center, he has been 
the Company’s driving force to launch products in markets that win society’s 
confidence with its outstanding technology and product quality. He has been 
elected as a Director as the Company has judged that he would be able to fur-
ther contribute to enhance the corporate value of the Sekisui Chemical Group 
with his expertise acquired through said experience.

Reasons for Election of the Director

He has mainly been engaged in the housing business. He previously assumed 
office as General Manager of the Living Environment Division, person responsi-
ble for the Public Relations & External Relations Department, Head of the Sales 
Management Division and Head of the President Office. He currently serves as 
President of Housing Company. He has been elected as a Director as he has the 
abundant experience in the housing business, which is the Company’s core busi-
ness, and expertise regarding business management in general.

Reasons for Election of the Director

Directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Executive Officers

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

Board of Directors
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May 1970: Joined Nissho Iwai Corporation

Jun. 2001: Executive Officer of Nissho Iwai Corporation

Apr. 2003: Director and Managing Executive Officer of Nissho Iwai 
Corporation

Apr. 2004: Representative Director and Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of Former Sojitz Corporation

Aug. 2004: Representative Director and Executive Vice President of 
Former Sojitz Corporation

Oct. 2005: Representative Director and Executive Vice President of 
Sojitz Corporation

Apr. 2007: President & CEO of Sojitz Corporation

Apr. 2012: Representative Director and Chairman of Sojitz Corporation 
[incumbent]

Jun. 2016: Director of the Company [incumbent]

May 1972: Joined Mitsukoshi, Ltd.

Feb. 2003: Executive Officer, General Manager of Operations 
Department of Mitsukoshi, Ltd.

Mar. 2004: Senior Executive Officer, General Manager of Corporate 
Planning Division of Mitsukoshi, Ltd.

Mar. 2005: Managing Executive Officer, General Manager of Business 
Planning Division of Mitsukoshi, Ltd.

May 2005: President and Representative Director, Executive Officer, 
General Manager of Business Planning Division of 
Mitsukoshi, Ltd.

Feb. 2006: President and Representative Director, Executive Officer of 
Mitsukoshi, Ltd.

Apr. 2008: President and Representative Director, Executive Officer of 
Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings, Ltd.

Feb. 2012: Chairman and Representative Director, Executive Officer of 
Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings Ltd. [incumbent]

Apr. 2012: Chairman and Representative Director, Executive Officer of 
Isetan Mitsukoshi, Ltd. [incumbent]

Jun. 2013: Director of the Company [incumbent]

Apr. 1980: Joined the Company

Apr. 2008: Executive Officer of the Company, Head of Interlayer Film 
Division of High Performance Plastics Company

Jul. 2011: Executive Officer of the Company, Head of New Business 
Promotion Division of High Performance Plastics Company

Mar. 2013: Executive Officer of the Company, Head of New Business 
Promotion Division and Head of Research & Development 
Institute of High Performance Plastics Company

Oct. 2013: Executive Officer of the Company, Head of Research 
& Development Institute of High Performance Plastics 
Company

Mar. 2014: Managing Executive Officer of the Company, President of 
High Performance Plastics Company 

Jun. 2014: Director of the Company, Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company, President of High Performance Plastics Company

Apr. 2015: Director of the Company, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company, President of High Performance 
Plastics Company [incumbent]

Apr. 1985: Joined the Company

Mar. 2009: Head of Foam Division of High Performance Plastics 
Company

Apr. 2014: Executive Officer of the Company, Head of Foam Division of 
High Performance Plastics Company

Apr. 2015: Executive Officer of the Company, Responsible for CSR 
Promotion Department, Head of Business Strategy 
Department

Jun. 2015: Director of the Company, Executive Officer of the Company, 
Responsible for CSR Promotion Department, Head of 
Business Strategy Department [incumbent]

Apr. 1985: Joined the Company

Oct. 2003: Head of General Administration Department of High 
Performance Plastics Company

Apr. 2011: Director of SEKISUI MEDICAL CO., LTD.

Sep. 2014: Head of HR Group of CSR Department

Apr. 2015: Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager of HR 
Department

Apr. 2016: Executive Officer of the Company, 
in charge of Legal Department, 
General Manager of HR Department [incumbent]

Yutaka  
Kase
Outside Director

Kunio  
Ishizuka
Outside Director

Keita
Kato
Director

Yoshiyuki 
Hirai
Director

Executive Officer

Hiroyuki 
Taketomo
Director

Executive Officer

Directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Executive Officers

Board of Directors

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

He has mainly been engaged in the high performance plastics business. He previ-
ously assumed office as Head of the Interlayer Film Division, Head of the New 
Business Promotion Division and Head of the Research & Development Institute. 
He currently serves as President of High Performance Plastics Company. He has 
been elected as a Director as he has abundant experience in global business for 
many years and expertise regarding business management in general, as well as 
the globalization that the Company strives to strengthen and expand.

Reasons for Election of the Director

He has mainly been engaged in the high performance plastics business. He pre-
viously assumed office as Head of the Foam Division. He currently serves as the 
person responsible for the CSR Promotion Department and Head of the Business 
Strategy Department. He has been elected as a Director as the Company has 
judged that he would be able to contribute to enhance the corporate value of 
the Sekisui Chemical Group by utilizing his expertise acquired through his past 
abundant experience in the planning of management strategy from a company-
wide perspective.

Reasons for Election of the Director
He has mainly been engaged in HR affairs. He previously assumed office as 
Director of SEKISUI MEDICAL CO., LTD. He currently serves as Executive Officer 
in charge of the Legal Department and General Manager of the HR Department. 
He has been elected as a Director as the Company has judged that he would 
be able to further contribute to enhance the corporate value of the Sekisui 
Chemical Group through the promotion of diversity management and the estab-
lishment of the compliance system by utilizing his expertise acquired through 
his past abundant experience.

Reasons for Election of the Director

He serves as Chairman and Representative Director and Executive Officer of 
Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings Ltd. and Chairman and Representative Director and 
Executive Officer of Isetan Mitsukoshi, Ltd. He plays an important role as an 
Outside Director of the Company and gives advice to the Company by utiliz-
ing his experience and knowledge as a management executive in the leading 
retail and service industry. He has been elected again as an Outside Director 
as we believe that his considerable insight on corporate management would be 
reflected in the management of the Sekisui Chemical Group.

Reasons for Election of the Director

As Representative Director and Chairman of Sojitz Corporation, he has abundant 
experience and past achievements regarding global corporate management and 
business strategy, which were developed as a corporate manager of a general 
trading company. He has been elected as an Outside Director as we believe that 
his advice given with his international knowledge and experience would be use-
ful to promote the globalization of the Sekisui Chemical Group.

Reasons for Election of the Director
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Teiji Koge
Chief Executive Officer

Housing Company

Shunichi Sekiguchi
Senior Managing Executive Officer
President of Housing Company

Hiroyuki Watanabe
Executive Officer
President of Sekisui Heim Tohoku Co., Ltd.

Futoshi Kamiwaki
Executive Officer
Head of Housing Product Research & 
Development Department

Kazukiyo Kuroki
Executive Officer
President of Sekisui Heim Kyushu Co., Ltd.

Toshiyuki Kamiyoshi
Executive Officer
President of Tokyo Sekisui Heim Co., Ltd.

Kenji Yagi
Executive Officer
President of Sekisui Heim Kinki Co., Ltd.

Satoru Oketani
Executive Officer
Head of Sales Management Division

Shinichiro Koga
Executive Officer 
Head of Technology Department

Urban Infrastructure &  
Environmental Products Company

Hajime Kubo
Senior Managing Executive Officer
President of Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products Company

Masaru Noriki
Executive Officer
Responsible for Overseas Pipeline Renewal 
Division 
Head of Sheet Division

Kimiatsu Sato
Executive Officer
Head of Asia Management Department

Akira Nishimura
Executive Officer
Head of Management Planning Department

Takashi Goto
Audit & Supervisory Board Member

Yuichi Hamabe
Audit & Supervisory Board Member

Tetsuo Ozawa
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member
Attorney at Law

Yasuhiro Nishi
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member
Certified Public Accountant

Kazuyuki Suzuki
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member
Professor, University of 
Electro-Communications, Tokyo

Audit & Supervisory Board Members Executive Officers

Directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Executive Officers

 
Headquarters

Satoshi Uenoyama
Senior Managing Executive Officer
Head of R&D Center and LB Project

Yoshiyuki Hirai
Executive Officer
Responsible for CSR Promotion Department
Head of Business Strategy Department

Moritoshi Naganuma
Executive Officer
Head of Corporate Finance & Accounting 
Department

Hiroyuki Taketomo
Executive Officer
Responsible for Legal Department
Head of Human Resources Department

Hitoshi Kobayashi
Executive Officer
Head of Total Manufacturing Management 
Center

 
High Performance Plastics Company

Keita Kato
Senior Managing Executive Officer
President of High Performance Plastics 
Company

Toshitaka Fukunaga
Executive Officer
Responsible for Electronics field 
Head of Technology & CS Promotion Department

Katsuhisa Yokura
Executive Officer
Head of Purchasing Department

Katsunori Mukai
Executive Officer
Head of New Business Promotion Division and 
Research & Development Institute

Ikusuke Shimizu
Executive Officer
Responsible for Automobiles and 
Transportation field
Head of Foam Division

Toshio Konno
Executive Officer
Responsible for Building and Infrastructure 
Materials field
Head of Specialty Chemicals Division
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Data (Key Financial and CSR Data)

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Financial Data

Net Sales 965,090 mil. yen 1,032,431 mil. yen 1,110,851 mil. yen 1,112,748 mil. yen 1,096,317 mil. yen

 (Housing) 449,391 mil. yen 469,036 mil. yen 496,790 mil. yen 494,116 mil. yen 473,441 mil. yen

 (Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products) 200,002 mil. yen 214,516 mil. yen 239,941 mil. yen 227,689 mil. yen 226,279 mil. yen

 (High Performance Plastics) 296,876 mil. yen 332,017 mil. yen 353,782 mil. yen 372,296 mil. yen 378,552 mil. yen

Operating Income 54,610 mil. yen 59,621 mil. yen 82,541 mil. yen 85,764 mil. yen 89,823 mil. yen

 (Housing) 31,090 mil. yen 36,333 mil. yen 41,108 mil. yen 41,327 mil. yen 36,387 mil. yen

 (Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products) 2,957 mil. yen 1,800 mil. yen 6,460 mil. yen 1,264 mil. yen 3,610 mil. yen

 (High Performance Plastics) 20,582 mil. yen 23,249 mil. yen 36,098 mil. yen 45,951 mil. yen 53,353 mil. yen

Ordinary Income 54,158 mil. yen 60,670 mil. yen 83,310 mil. yen 87,978 mil. yen 81,213 mil. yen

Net Income Attributable to Owners of Parent 28,116 mil. yen 30,174 mil. yen 41,190 mil. yen 52,995 mil. yen 56,653 mil. yen

Comprehensive Income 24,652 mil. yen 77,437 mil. yen 57,944 mil. yen 91,587 mil. yen 37,080 mil. yen

Operating Income Ratio 5.7 % 5.8 % 7.4 % 7.7 % 8.2 %

Total Assets 827,103 mil. yen 901,564 mil. yen 961,009 mil. yen 968,011 mil. yen 936,043 mil. yen

Net Assets 363,299 mil. yen 433,228 mil. yen 473,555 mil. yen 535,292 mil. yen 544,156 mil. yen

Net cash provided by operating activities 66,652 mil. yen 71,016 mil. yen 97,720 mil. yen 67,760 mil. yen 71,389 mil. yen

Net cash used in (provided by) investing activities -70,727 mil. yen -31,133 mil. yen -60,914 mil. yen 4,127 mil. yen -23,715 mil. yen

Net cash used in financing activities -16,077 mil. yen -30,520 mil. yen -49,803 mil. yen -63,856 mil. yen -41,726 mil. yen

Free Cash Flow -12,332 mil. yen 30,650 mil. yen 24,915 mil. yen 58,810 mil. yen 33,375 mil. yen

Capital Expenditures 33,076 mil. yen 36,842 mil. yen 41,827 mil. yen 46,993 mil. yen 49,740 mil. yen

Depreciation and Amortization 35,102 mil. yen 34,895 mil. yen 34,376 mil. yen 31,203 mil. yen 34,735 mil. yen

R&D Expenditures 25,611 mil. yen 25,894 mil. yen 27,720 mil. yen 29,452 mil. yen 31,693 mil. yen

Net Assets per Share 682.46 yen 810.76 yen 897.18 yen 1,033.49 yen 1,071.24 yen

Net Income Attributable to Owners of Parent per Share 53.96 yen 58.53 yen 80.13 yen 104.73 yen 115.08 yen

Dividends per Share 15.00 yen 18.00 yen 23.00 yen 27.00 yen 30.00 yen

Free Cash Flow = Operating Activities CF + Investing Activities CF - Dividend Paid

Data
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FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Financial Data

Financial Index

  Dividends Payout Ratio 27.8 % 30.8 % 28.7 % 25.8 % 26.1 %

  Shareholders’ Equity to Total Assets 42.5 % 46.4 % 47.5 % 53.3 % 55.9 %

  Current Ratio 123.5 % 131.1 % 127.4 % 139.8 % 138.0 %

  Fixed Ratio 121.4 % 110.3 % 102.1 % 97.2 % 95.9 %

  Interest-bearing Debt 127,188 mil. yen 115,320 mil. yen 94,010 mil. yen 63,120 mil. yen 52,338 mil. yen

  Debt/Equity Ratio 36.2 % 27.6 % 20.6 % 12.2 % 10.0 %

  Total Assets Turnover 1.19 times 1.19 times 1.19 times 1.15 times 1.15 times

  Inventory Turnover 7.71 times 7.57 times 7.50 times 7.09 times 7.11 times

  Tangible Fixed Assets Turnover 4.13 times 4.38 times 4.51 times 4.31 times 4.11 times

  R&D Expenditures to Revenues 2.65 % 2.51 % 2.50 % 2.65 % 2.89 %

  Return on Equity 8.1 % 7.8 % 9.4 % 10.9 % 10.9 %

  Return on Total Assets 6.7 % 7.0 % 8.9 % 9.1 % 8.5 %

  EBITDA 89,712 mil. yen 94,516 mil. yen 116,918 mil. yen 116,967 mil. yen 124,558 mil. yen

  Interest Coverage Ratio 20.7 times 21.7 times 33.2 times 51.7 times 64.5 times

  Dividend to Equity Ratio 2.3 % 2.4 % 2.7 % 2.8 % 2.9 %

  PER 13.31 times 17.63 times 13.39 times 14.89 times 12.04 times

  Net Sales per Employee 47.51 mil. yen 47.96 mil. yen 49.13 mil. yen 47.44 mil. yen 45.88 mil. yen

Human Rights

Compliance Training

  Number of Employees Participating in e-Learning 18,649 19,617 20,210 20,450 20,275

  e-learning Training (participation rate) 80.6 % 82.4 % 81.8 % 81.2 % 80.8 %(Note)

Note: Implemented on four occasions in fiscal 2015. However, as the third and fourth occasions are under way, data is the average of the results from for the first and second round of classes.

Shareholders’ Equity to Total Assets = Shareholders’ Equity including Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/Total Assets, Current Ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabilities, Fixed Ratio = Fixed Assets/Shareholders’ Equity, Debt/Equity Ratio = Interest-bearing Debt/
Shareholders’ Equity, Total Assets Turnover = Net Sales/Average Total Assets, Inventory Turnover = Net Sales/Average Inventory, Tangible Fixed Assets Turnover = Net Sales/Average Tangible Fixed Assets, R&D Expenditures to Revenues =R&D Expenditures/Net Sales, Return 
on Equity = Net Income Attributable to Owners of Parent/Average Shareholders’ Equity, Return on Total Assets = Ordinary Income/Average Total Assets, EBITDA = Operating Income + Depreciation and Amortization, Interest Coverage Ratio = (Operating Income + Interest 
and Dividends)/Interest Expense, Dividend to Equity Ratio=Dividend per Share/Average Net per Share, PER = Stock prices at the end of fiscal year/Net Income Attributable to Owners of Parent per Share, Net Sales per Employee = Net Sales/Average Number of Employees

Data
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FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Labor Practices

Number of Employees 20,855 22,202 23,017 23,886 23,901

  By Divisional Company

   (Housing) 8,820 9,775 9,840 10,442 10,419

   (Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products) 4,570 4,887 5,363 5,453 5,044

   (High Performance Plastics) 6,443 6,545 6,858 7,051 7,453

   (Headquarters) 1,022 995 956 940 985 

  By Region

   (Japan) 15,747 16,813 17,047 17,743 18,065 

   (North America, Central and South America) 1,483 1,553 1,544 1,579 1,512 

   (Europe) 1,512 1,462 1,432 1,425 1,048 

   (Asia/Pacific (including China)) 2,113 2,374 2,994 3,139 3,276 

Diversity

  Employment Ratio of People with Disabilities (Sekisui Chemical) *1 2.03 % 1.99 % 2.55 % 2.40 % 2.21 %

   Number of Elderly Employees Reemployed (Sekisui Chemical) 27 65 56 83 104 

   Elderly Employees Reemployment Rate (Sekisui Chemical) 52.9 % 72.2 % 87.5 % 82.2 % 82.5 %

Global Talent Employees*2 271 294 300 325 329

Work-life Balance

   Number of people using work-life balance related programs*3 
(Sekisui Chemical) 143 143 154 164 176 

Health and Safety

   Loss Costs (Japan)*4 383.6 mil. yen 775.4 mil. yen 444.5 mil. yen 510.9 mil. yen 393.7 mil. yen

*1: Including special provision subsidiary
*2: Japanese employees with experience working overseas (including overseas trainees)
*3: Next-generation development support programs including childcare leave, shorter working hours, use of flexible working hours, and family leave
*4:  Domestic production site, R&D facility, Headquarters department, and indirect company department expenses including man-hours required to respond to 

occupational accidents, equipment-related accidents, and commuting accidents as well as long-term illness absences

Data
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FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Environment*1

Greenhouse-gas Emissions during Manufacturing (Japan) 342 kilotons-CO2 312 kilotons-CO2 340 kilotons-CO2 321 kilotons-CO2 307 kilotons-CO2

Greenhouse-gas Emissions during Manufacturing (Overseas) 452 kilotons-CO2 441 kilotons-CO2 471 kilotons-CO2 470 kilotons-CO2 468 kilotons-CO2

Energy Usage during Manufacturing (Japan) 5,659 TJ 5,456 TJ 5,937 TJ 5,596 TJ 5,347 TJ

Energy Usage during Manufacturing (Overseas) 7,539 TJ 7,365 TJ 7,840 TJ 7,836 TJ 7,741 TJ

Wastes Generated by Production Sites (Japan) 36.1 kilotons 35.2 kilotons 35.0 kilotons 34.1 kilotons 31.7 kilotons

Wastes Generated by Production Sites (Overseas) 18.7 kilotons 22.2 kilotons 25.6 kilotons 27.5 kilotons 25.9 kilotons

Wastes Generated by New House Construction (Japan) 1.76 tons per units 1.88 tons per units 1.90 tons per units 1.87 tons per units 1.73 tons per units
 (New House Sonstruction Site) 1.08 tons per units 1.17 tons per units 1.22 tons per units 1.31 tons per units 1.34 tons per units
 (Exterior Wall Plant) 0.45 tons per units 0.46 tons per units 0.44 tons per units 0.34 tons per units 0.16 tons per units
 (Assembly Plant) 0.23 tons per units 0.25 tons per units 0.24 tons per units 0.22 tons per units 0.23 tons per units
NOx Emission Volume (Japan) 217 tons 205 tons 217 tons 197 tons 193 tons

SOx Emission Volume (Japan) 15 tons 14 tons 13 tons 10 tons 15 tons

Soot and Dust Emission Volume (Japan) 2.5 tons 9.5 tons 4 tons 3 tons 2.3 tons

COD Discharge Volume (Japan) 63 tons 51 tons 70 tons 71 tons 76 tons

Discharge of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)
into the Atmosphere (Japan) 1,391 tons 1,219 tons 1,368 tons 1,259 tons 1,262 tons

Amount of Water Extracted for Use at Production Site (Japan) 16,413 kilotons 15,712 kilotons 17,041 kilotons 16,019 kilotons 15,954 kilotons

Amount of Water Extracted for Use at Production Site (Overseas) 4,499 kilotons 4,715 kilotons 4,662 kilotons 4,629 kilotons 4,489 kilotons

Environment-Contributing Products
  Ratio of Sales of Environment-Contributing Products 37.2 % 38.0 % 42.0 % 44.5 % 44.3 %

  Net Sales 359.2 bil. yen 392.5 bil. yen 466.8 bil. yen 495.1 bil. yen 485.8 bil. yen

   (Housing) 246.2 bil. yen 268.7 bil. yen 306.8 bil. yen 305.8 bil. yen 280.6 bil. yen

   (Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products) 77.1 bil. yen 79.9 bil. yen 99.6 bil. yen 99.8 bil. yen 103.5 bil. yen

   (High Performance Plastics) 34.9 bil. yen 42.8 bil. yen 59.1 bil. yen 88.1 bil. yen 99.8 bil. yen

   Number of Solar Powered Houses*2 Built (accumulated total, as of 
the end of December) 105,885 units 124,413 units 142,996 units 161,013 units 170,095 units

Community Involvement and Development
Charitable Contributions 228 mil. yen 102 mil. yen 255 mil. yen 179 mil. yen 148 mil. yen

Consumer Issues
External Failure Costs (Costs responding to product-related claims)
(FY2008=100)  96 54 53 52

*1 Due to the revised scope of summation, overseas figures have been revised retroactively.
*2 Sales of housing with solar power generation systems commenced in 1997.

Data
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Corporate Information and Stock Information
 As of March 31, 2016

 Head Office:  4-4, Nishitenma 2-Chome, 
Kita-ku, Osaka 
530-8565

 Tokyo Head Office:  3-17, Toranomon 2-Chome, 
Minato-ku, Tokyo 
105-8450

 Founded: March 3, 1947

                    President and  
 Representative Director: Teiji Koge

 Employees: 23,901

 Consolidated Subsidiaries: 155

 Affiliates (Equity Method): 8

 Paid-in Capital: 100,002,375,657 yen

 Fiscal Year: Ended March 31

 Authorized: 1,187,540,000 shares

 Issued: 510,507,285 shares

 Listings: Common stock listed on  
  the Tokyo Stock Exchange

 Stock Ticker Number: 4204

 Number of Shareholders: 18,761

                 Manager of the  
 Register of Shareholders: Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 
  Banking Corporation

 Accounting Auditor: Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC 

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares Held 
(Thousands of Shares)

Percentage of Ownership 
(%)

Asahi Kasei Corporation 31,039 6.08
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 24,883 4.87
The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 19,681 3.85
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 15,216 2.98
Sekisui House, Ltd. 11,998 2.35
Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. 11,946 2.34
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505225 9,462 1.85
Employees Stock Ownership Plan 8,846 1.73
JP Morgan Chase Bank 385164 7,970 1.56
Pictet and Cie (Europe) S. A. 7,735 1.51

Notes: 1. The Company maintains 21,892,870 shares of treasury stock, which does not include the holdings of the major shareholders in the above list.
            2. The number of shares held is rounded down to the nearest thousand.

Treasury Stock
21,892,870shares

(4.2%)

Securities Companies
5,709,982shares
(1.1%)

Foreign Investors
198,103,302shares

(38.8%)

Individuals and Other
49,622,341shares
(9.7%)

Domestic Companies
69,517,020shares
(13.6%)

Financial Institutions
165,661,770shares

(32.4%)

Total
510,507,285

shares

Breakdown of Shareholders
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Monthly Average Stock Trading Volume (right)
Closing Stock Price at the Month-End (left)

Sekisui Chemical Stock Price and Trading Volume

Additional Information
FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Stock 
Price
(Yen)

Open  661  729  1,028  1,087  1,544

High 731 1,042 1,448 1,619 1,752 

Low 553 590 900 1,002 1,193

Close 718 1,032 1,073 1,559 1,386

Issued (thousands of shares) 539,507 532,507 532,507 520,507 510,507

Market value (billions of yen) 387.4 549.5 571.4 811.5 707.6

Major Shareholders

Corporate Information and Stock Information
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Corporate History

Corporate History

Mar. 1947 Sekisui Industry Co., Ltd. formed as a general plastics company by former employees 
of Nippon Chisso Hiryo K.K. (currently Chisso Corporation)

Jan. 1948 Nara Plant opened, started the first plastic automatic injection molding business in Japan

Jan. 1948 Changed the name to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd.

Mar. 1953 Listed on the Osaka Securities Exchange

Sep. 1953 Tokyo Plant opened, began production of molded plastic products

Apr. 1954 Listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Jun. 1956 Central Research Laboratory (currently Research & Development Institute) established

Aug.1960 Shiga Ritto Plant opened, began production of PVC pipe and PVC building materials

Nov.1960 Shiga Minakuchi Plant opened, began production of polyvinyl butyral and interlayer film

Jul. 1962 Musashi Plant opened, began production of plastic tape and PVC tape

Jan. 1964 Tokuyama Sekisui Industry Co., Ltd. (currently a consolidated subsidiary) established 
and began production of PVC resins

Feb. 1971 Entered the housing business with the launch of steel frame unit housing “Heim”

Oct. 1971 Naseki Industry Co., Ltd. (currently Kinki Sekisui Heim Industry Co., Ltd., consolidated 
subsidiary) established and began production of unit housing

Mar. 1972 3S (San-es) Heim Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (currently Tokyo Sekisui Heim Industry Co., 
Ltd., consolidated subsidiary) established and began production of unit housing

May 1977 Introduction of a new divisional head office system

Mar. 1982 Launch of wooden frame unit housing “Two-U Home”

Apr. 1982 Gunma Plant opened, began production of PVC pipe and exterior paneling for unit 
construction housing

Dec. 1983 Sekisui America Corporation (currently a consolidated subsidiary) established

Jul. 1987 Applied Electronics Research Center (currently Development Center, R&D Center) 
established

Sep. 1990 Housing Research & Development Institute (currently Housing Technology Institute) 
established in the Housing Division (currently Housing Company)

Apr. 1992 Kyoto Technology Center (currently Kyoto R&D Laboratory) established

Aug.1997 Komatsu Kasei Co., Ltd. (currently Vantec Co., Ltd., consolidated subsidiary) acquired 
to strengthen pipe business

Jan. 2000 Hinomaru Co., Ltd. (currently a consolidated subsidiary) acquired to strengthen 
operations in the Kyushu region

Mar. 2000 Seven divisions combined into three: Housing Division, Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products Division, and High Performance Plastics Division; New 
Business Headquarters established

Oct. 2000 Housing sales system reorganized, with the Tokyo and Kinki regional sales companies 
overseeing local regional sales networks

Mar. 2001 New “company” system introduced, renaming the Housing, Urban Infrastructure & 
Environmental Products, and High Performance Plastics Divisions as the Housing 
Company, Urban Infrastructure & Environmental Products Company, and High 
Performance Plastics Company

Apr. 2002 Head office functions reorganized into 7 departments

Apr. 2003 Chugoku region housing business sales structure reorganized, Sekisui Heim Chugoku Co., 
Ltd., (currently Sekisui Heim Chushikoku Co., Ltd., consolidated subsidiary) established

Apr. 2003 Youngbo Chemical Co., Ltd. (listed on the Korea Exchange, consolidated subsidiary) 
acquired, strengthening global competitiveness

Aug.2004 Tohoku region housing business sales structure reorganized, Sekisui Heim Tohoku 
Co., Ltd. (currently a consolidated subsidiary) established

Jul. 2005 Kyushu region housing business sales structure reorganized, Sekisui Heim Kyushu 
Co., Ltd. (currently a consolidated subsidiary) established

Oct. 2006 Daiichi Pure Chemicals Co., Ltd. (currently Sekisui Medical Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary) 
acquired to strengthen the medical business of the High Performance Plastics Company

Jan. 2007 Head office functions reorganized into 6 departments, and CSR department established

Jul. 2007 Tokyo, Chubu and Kinki region housing business sales structures reorganized, Tokyo 
Sekisui Heim Co., Ltd., (currently a consolidated subsidiary) Sekisui Heim Chubu Co., 
Ltd. (currently a consolidated subsidiary) and Sekisui Heim Kinki Co., Ltd. (currently a 
consolidated subsidiary) established

Apr. 2008 Introduction of the Executive Officer System

Jul. 2009 Polyvinyl alcohol resin business acquired from group companies of the Celanese 
Corporation chemical company of the United States, stable raw material supply 
structure for the interlayer film for laminated glass business established

Jan. 2011 Diagnostics business acquired from of pharmaceutical company Genzyme Corporation 
of the United States and new company established accelerating full-fledged global 
development in the medical business

Dec. 2012 Pipeline business acquired from Mitsubishi Plastics, Inc., core businesses centered 
on piping materials strengthened

Mar. 2013 Thailand unit housing mass production factory constructed, full-fledged development 
of the housing business in Thailand

Dec. 2015 Eidia Co., Ltd. (currently a consolidated subsidiary), which manufactures and sells 
diagnostic reagents, acquired from Eisai Co., Ltd. to strengthen the Life Science 
Business of the High Performance Plastics Company.
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The Process of Identifying Key CSR Issues (Materiality) and Evaluation of CSR Activities

As venues for deliberation on CSR management, we have set up the CSR Committee and five subcommittees: the Environ-
mental Subcommittee, the CS & Quality Subcommittee, the Human Resources Subcommittee, the Safety Subcommittee, 
and the Compliance Subcommittee.
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B: Importance to the Sekisui Chemical Group management

List used in assessing the importance of CSR issues

CSR Medium-Term Plan

The Group announced its support for 
the principles of the United Nations 
Global Compact in 2009. The Group 
conducts its CSR activities with con-
sideration to the compact’s platform 
for evaluations and principles.

(As of January 4, 2016)

The Process of Identifying Key CSR Issues (Materiality)

Support for the United Nations Global Compact

Candidates for key CSR issues were identified through considering global guidelines, SRI surveys, and developments at other 
companies, and then analyzing the opinions and expectations of each stakeholder. These candidates and CSR issues already 
addressed were sorted into key CSR issues for the future.

Sort candidates for key CSR issues

The candidates for key CSR issues sorted in Step 1 were subjected to overall evaluation along the two axes of their impor-
tance to stakeholders (A) and importance to the Sekisui Chemical Group management (B). Along axis A, candidates were 
assessed from the perspectives of expectations of each stakeholder, world trends, and positive and negative impacts on the 
planet and society, while along axis B they were assessed from the perspectives of consistency with management policies 
and management strategies, correspondence to CSR issues, risk and reputation, and priories based on a timeline.

Assess the importance of candidates for key CSR issues

Following deliberation in the CSR Committee, key performance indicators (KPIs) were set by the responsible departments for 
the identified key CSR issues. The CSR medium-term plan was formulated and approved by the Committee.

Formulate the CSR medium-term plan

Step1

Step2

Step3

Key CSR issues

Key Issues and Evaluation of CSR Activities

Main evaluations from soiety (FY2015)
Selection to key SRI Indices



For further information please contact:
Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd., Investor Relations, Business Strategy Department
3-17, Toranomon, 2-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8450, Japan
Tel: +813 (5521) 0524
E-mail: ir@sekisui.com
http://www.sekisuichemical.com
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